
Agenda Page 1 September 19, 2024, Mtg. 

 

 

 

 

              
 

 

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

 

AGENDA 

 

Diamond Springs Firefighters Memorial Hall  

501 Pleasant Valley Road 

Diamond Springs, CA 95619 

 

September 19, 2024 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87379059610  

 

Meeting ID: 873 7905 9610 

 

One tap mobile 

1(669)444-9171 

 
Fire Chief, Tim Cordero 

 

Mark Brunton (Div. 1)                                                              Jim Edmiston (Div. 4)                                                                       

Mickey Kaiserman (Div. 2)                                                        Paul Gilchrest (Div. 5)      

Lloyd Ogan (Div. 3)  

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

12:15 P.M.  OPEN SESSION 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 

Any person wishing to address the Board on any item on the closed session portion of the 

agenda may do so at this time.   

 

12:20 P.M.   CLOSED SESSION 

A. Conference With Labor Negotiators 

Agency Designated Representative: Fire Chief 

El Dorado County Fire Professional Firefighters Association – Local 3556  

 
  

1:00 P.M. OPEN SESSION 

 

1.      CALL TO ORDER:    

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87379059610


Agenda Page 2 September 19, 2024, Mtg. 

 

 

      2.        ROLL CALL:  

            

      3.        PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

4.      APPROVE AGENDA:    

 

5.       CONSENT CALENDAR:  

            (All items approved on a single vote except those pulled for individual    

            discussion and action). 

 

A. Minutes:   August 15, 2024 

B. Claim Payments/Deposits: 

C. Standard Operating Guideline: 2-32 – Strike Team Overhead Staffing  

Dist. Claims FY 23/24:   District Claims Aug. 2024:    

                 $2,800.00                $150.00 

                 $1,610.00             $2,805.26 

                 $1,950.00                $15,069.59 

                 $6,800.00                $14,567.95 

                 $28,841.17                 $1,472.65 

                 $1,948.26                 $27,216.26 

      $9,730.87                $1,414,828.44 

      $1,683.75     $613.82 

                       $13,920.72 

       $78,417.28 

       $2,078.00 

       $40.00 

       $45,841.00 

       $151,400.78 

  

Dist. Deposits:   

$8,879.68  

$1,235.00    

$4,727.30  

$8,567.66 

$5,862.53 

$16,952.03 

$3,036.28 

$6,879.92      

                        

6.      PUBLIC COMMENT: 

(Any person wishing to address the Board on any item that is not on the agenda may do so 

at this time.  Public comments are limited to three minutes per person.) 

 

7. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: 

A. Conference With Labor Negotiators 

Agency Designated Representative: Fire Chief 

El Dorado County Fire Professional Firefighters Association – Local 3556 

  

 

8. DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS: 



Agenda Page 3 September 19, 2024, Mtg. 

 

A. Administrative – Resolution 2024-07 – CFD Formation 

▪ Review/Discuss Action  

B. Administrative – Resolution 2024-06 – FY 24/25 Final Budget  

▪ Review/Discuss/Action  

C. Administrative – Apparatus Payment  

▪ Discuss/Action  

D. Administrative – CALFIRE Cooperative Agreement  

▪ Review/Discuss/Action  

E. Administrative – American Fidelity Employee Benefits  

▪ Discuss/Action  

F. Operational – AB 38 Real Estate Inspections  

▪ Discuss/Action  

 

9. BOARD MATTERS: 

A. Director Reimbursement  

▪ Board Policy 4030 

1. Discussion/Action  

 

10.      COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

        Standing Committees: 

A.  Budget and Finance (Kaiserman, Gilchrest) 

B.  Communications & Outreach (Brunton, Gilchrest)  

 

Ad-hoc Committees: 

A. Facilities & Equipment (Brunton, Edmiston) 

B. Human Resources (Ogan, Edmiston) 

C. DSP ECF Annexation Working Group (Kaiserman, Ogan) 

 

11.     CORRESPONDENCE AND COMMUNICATION: 

• Fire Engine Response Statistics. 

• Medic Unit Response Statistics. 

• Thank you letter from Oak Hill Area Fire Safe Council. 

 

12.    FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT: 

 

      13.     BOARD COMMENTS: 

      

      14.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 

                Next regularly scheduled Board Meeting, October 17, 2024.      

 

      15.     ADJOURNMENT:  

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability related 

modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, then please contact Fire Chief Tim Cordero by telephone at 

530-644-9630 or by fax 530-644-9636.  Request must be made as early as possible and at least one full business day 

before the start of the meeting.      



 

 

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

 BOARD MEETING 

 

August 15, 2024 

12:30 Closed Session 

1:00 P.M. Open Session 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82823500080  

 

Meeting ID: 828 2350 0080 

 

One tap mobile 

1(669)444-9171 

 
Fire Chief, Tim Cordero 

 

 

12:30 P.M.  OPEN SESSION 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 

Any person wishing to address the Board on any item on the closed session portion of the 

agenda may do so at this time.   

 

12:35 P.M.   CLOSED SESSION 

A. Conference With Labor Negotiators 

Agency Designated Representative: Fire Chief 

Non-Safety Employee Association 

 

1:00 P.M.  OPEN SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 

Director Kaiserman called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M 

 

2. ROLL CALL: 

 

     Present: Kaiserman, Ogan, Edmiston, Gilchrest 

                 Absent: Brunton 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  

 

4. APPROVE AGENDA: 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82823500080


It was moved by Director Ogan and seconded by Director Edmiston to approve the agenda as 

presented. The motion was passed by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: Kaiserman, Ogan, Edmiston, Gilchrest  

Noes: None 

Absent: Brunton 

 

 5.    CONSENT CALENDAR:  

 

           (All items approved on a single vote except those pulled for individual    

            discussion and action). 

 

A. Minutes: July 18, 2024, Regular Meeting   

B. Claim Payments/Deposits: 

Dist. Claims FY 23/24:     District Claims FY 24/25: 

$20,657.00                $109,112.19 

$10,663.04             $237,165.75 

$7,975.00                $1,171.68 

$17,141.73                $15,125.56 

$8,516.43                 $10,619.92 

$692.00                 $3,054.72 

$12,867.47                $69,420.41 

                   $17,388.45 

        $156,218.70 

      $2,824,869.00 

Dist. Deposits:   

$19,390.65  

$10,638.47    

$5,028.00   

$1,151.76 

$6,321.00 

$8,219.57 

$6,679.41 

$10,156.19 

 

It was moved by Director Gilchrest and seconded by Director Ogan to approve the Consent 

Calendar as Presented. The motion was passed by the following vote: 

 

Ayes: Kaiserman, Ogan, Edmiston, Gilchrest  

Noes: None  

Absent: Brunton  

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 

(Any person wishing to address the Board on any item that is not on the agenda may do so at this 

time. Public comments are limited to five minutes per person). 

 

No Public Comment  

 

7. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION: 

 



A. Conference With Labor Negotiators 

Agency Designated Representative: Fire Chief 

El Dorado County Professional Firefighters Association Local 3556 

 

Director Kaiserman stated the board approved the side letter with the Non-Safety Employee 

Association. 

 

8.  DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS: 

 

A. Operational – Employee Recognition  

• Chief Michael Lilienthal  

• Captain Nick Rose  

 

B.     Administrative –  FY 2022-2023 Annual Audit  

• Presentation/Discussion/Action   

 

It was moved by Director Edmiston and seconded by Director Ogan to approve FY 

2022-2023 Annual Audit.  Motion was passed by the following vote: 

  

Ayes: Kaiserman, Ogan, Edmiston, Gilchrest  

Noes: None  

Abstain:   None  

Absent:  Brunton  

 

C. Operational – RFQ 24-3 & RFQ 24-4 Recommendation     

• Review/Discuss/Action  

 

It was moved by Director Edmiston and seconded by Director Gilchrest to approve 

quote from AllStar Fire Equipment for RFQ 24-3 and RFQ 24-4.  Motion was 

passed by the following vote: 

  

Ayes: Kaiserman, Ogan, Edmiston, Gilchrest  

Noes: None  

Abstain:   None  

Absent:  Brunton 

 

9.       BOARD MATTERS: 

 

 

10.  COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

Standing Committees: 

 

A. Budget and Finance (Kaiserman, Gilchrest) 

 

Committee is meeting August 20, 2024 

 

B. Communications & Outreach (Brunton, Gilchrest) 

 

Committee is meeting August 23, 2024  



 

Ad-hoc Committees: 

 

A. Facilities and Equipment (Brunton, Edmiston) 

 

No Report  

 

B. Human Resources (Ogan, Edmiston) 

 

No Report   

 

C. DSP ECF Annexation Working Group (Kaiserman, Ogan) 

 

Chief Cordero provided an update on the DSP ECF Annexation.    

  

11.    CORRESPONDENCE AND COMMUNICATION: 

• Fire Engine Response Statistics. 

• Medic Unit Response Statistics.   

• Thank you letter from Oak Hill Area Fire Safe Council. 

 

12.    FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT: 

 

• City of Placerville 

• Staff is continuing to work with the city regarding the Public Safety Building and 

potential options. We did walk two other sites for consideration and review. 

•  ECF was involved with the National Night Out Program on August 6th, in coordination 

with the Placerville Police Dept. we made visits to approximately 11 locations in 

Placerville with Chief Stirling, Captain Shepard, Captain Preston & Denali, Engine & 

Medic 25, Engine 28 and myself. We also had Engine and Medic 17 involved in Pollock 

Pines, and Engine 49 and Chief Gallagher at Gold Country. Great turn out across the 

districts. 

• JPA 

• Contract negotiations continue with the County, the group meets twice monthly. 

• The JPA has two new remounted medic units that are going through the in-service 

process. Hopefully they will be functional very soon. 

• District information 

• Engine 328 and 317 have been hired out to Cal Fire since early July. ECF and DSP 

personnel assigned have been covering multiple Cal Fire stations during this period. Our 

crews have responded to multiple fires and various calls, as a Cal Fire resource. We 

recently added Water Tender 49 to hired list as well. All our crews have done an 

amazing job, working a ton of overtime both on these units and backfilling the 

vacancies. 

• Engine 25 and Placerville PD assisted the El Dorado High School Senior Football 

players with their annual photo / schedule at the Bell Tower in Placerville. 

• The District recently promoted Captain Ben Anderson, Captain Zach Iddings and 

Engineer Eric Banuelos. We are working on scheduling a formal ceremony late Aug / 

early September at Red Hawk. 



• The final inspection for our three new Type 1 engines has been completed. They 

should be delivered to Golden State in Sacramento in the next few weeks. The new 

ladder truck is scheduled for final inspection on September 15-18. 

• The Diamond Springs Fire Board approved the agreement with William “Bill” Adams, 

for the annexation consulting. We are scheduling a joint meeting with LAFCO later 

this month. 

• SB-1240 cleared the final committee and is waiting to be heard on the Assembly floor. 

• September Board meeting location may need to be changed, due to schedule conflict at 

Town Hall. 

 

13.    BOARD COMMENTS: 

 

Brunton:    Absent   

  

                  Ogan:        No Comment    

 

Kaiserman: Director Kaiserman stated that he and Director Gilchrest presented their SB-60 

presentation to Sheriff Leikauf.  He stated Sheriff Leikauf is going to write a 

letter of support and send it to Senator Alvarado-Gil.  Director Kaiserman and 

Director Gilchrest will be making the same presentation at the next Diamond 

Springs/El Dorado Board of Directors meeting in September.    

 

Edmiston:   No Comment    

 

Gilchrest:   Director Gilchrest stated he and Director Kaiserman will be making the SB-660 

presentation to Redding Fire.   

 

      14.      FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:   

 

Next regularly scheduled Board Meeting, September 19, 2024.  

  

15.       ADJOURNMENT:       At 2:12 P.M. it was moved by Director Edmiston and seconded by 

Director Ogan to adjourn; all in favor. 
 

 



EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE 

FINANCE REPORT 

 
1. Fire Operations Budget Summary 

2. District Claims Submitted for Payment  

 
           District Claims FY 23/24:   

• $2,800.00         

• $1,610.00 

• $1,950.00 

• $6,800.00 

• $28,841.17 

• $1,948.26 

• $9,730.87 

• $1,683.75 

 

District Claims August 2024: 

• $150.00 

• $2,805.26 

• $15,069.59 

• $14,567.95 

• $1,472.65 

• $27,216.26 

• $1,414,828.44 

• $613.82 

• $13,920.72 

• $78,417.28 

• $2,078.00 

• $40.00 

• $45,841.00 

• $151,400.78 

 

           District Deposits: 

• $8,879.68 

• $1,235.00 

• $4,727.30 

• $8,567.66 

• $5,862.53 

• $16,952.03 

• $3,036.28 

• $6,879.92 
 

 
 

 

 



Carry-over funds from previous year

100 Property Taxes-Secured (current year) $11,377,085.00 $0.00 ($11,377,085.00) 0%

110 Property Taxes-Unsecured (current) $218,234.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

140 Supplemental Property Taxes-Current $471,362.00 $0.00 ($471,362.00) 0%

174 Tax: Timber Yield $54.00 $0.00 ($54.00) 0%

342 Fund Balance (Measure S Fund Transfer St. 28) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

820 State Homeowners Property Tax Relief $71,518.00 $0.00 ($71,518.00) 0%

Prior Years Property Taxes

120 Property Taxes-Prior Secured $25,927.00 $0.00 ($25,927.00) 0%

130 Property Taxes-Prior Unsecured $6,021.00 $620.08 ($5,400.92) 10%

150 Supplemental Property Taxes-Prior $31,367.00 $193.62 ($31,173.38) 1%

360 Taxes-Penalties $12,016.00 $0.00 ($12,016.00) 0%

Voter Approved Special Taxes

175 Direct Assessment $521,813.00 $0.00 ($521,813.00) 0%

1310 Fire Suppression (Shingle Springs) $5,024.00 $0.00 ($5,024.00) 0%

Other Fees & Service Reimbursements

880 St: Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 100%

881 Federal/State Reimbursements $181,737.00 $87,279.34 ($94,457.66) 48%

400 Interest $61,422.00 $8,433.71 ($52,988.29) 14%

420 Rent: Land & Building $48,752.00 $19,390.65 ($29,361.35) 40%

1100 Station 17 Lease Payment $0.00 $10,056.00 $10,056.00 0%

1200 Temporary T.O.T. Reimbursement $80,000.00 $0.00 ($80,000.00) 0%

1400/1401 Inspection Fee's - Prevention - Plan Review Fees $133,719.00 $6,883.30 ($126,835.70) 5%

1403 Development Fees Trust Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

1686 Ambulance Admin Reimbursement (1686) $469,418.00 $0.00 ($469,418.00) 0%

1744 Misc: Inspection or Services VHR $0.00 $4,225.00 $4,225.00 0%

1940 Miscellaneous $0.00 $14,030.25 $14,030.25 #DIV/0!

1942 Misc: Reimbursement - First Responder Fee $170,000.00 $42,014.64 ($127,985.36) 0%

1947 Insurance Refunds & Safety Funds $5,462.00 $0.00 ($5,462.00) 0%

2000 Sale of Fixed Assets $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

1207 Shingle Springs Rancheria $654,000.00 $0.00 ($654,000.00) 0%

1800 Interfund Rev: Service Between Fund Types $1,180,277.00 $0.00 ($1,180,277.00) 0%

Total Revenue $15,725,208.00 $193,126.59 ($14,133,570.41) 1.23%

Sub Revenues /  Sources
Preliminary  

Budget

2024-2025

Expended

2024-2025

Over or Under

Budget

Percentage

Collected

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Preliminary Fire Operations Budget Summary 2024-2025

July 1, 20201Through August 31, 2024 17% Expended

9/13/2024 8:36 AM 1 of 5 Fire Operations Summary



3000 Salaries and Wages $5,599,285.00 $874,527.96 ($4,724,757.04) 16%

3001 Directors/Apprentice FF/Prevention Consultants $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0%

3002 Overtime $1,294,420.00 $455,049.37 ($839,370.63) 35%

3004 Other Compensation $414,170.00 $99,407.29 ($314,762.71) 24%

3020 Retirement $3,021,650.00 $2,991,182.89 ($30,467.11) 99%

3021 OASDI $6,467.00 $93.00 ($6,374.00) 1%

3022 Medicare $112,000.00 $20,313.10 ($91,686.90) 18%

3040 Health & Dental $1,241,061.00 $250,723.75 ($990,337.25) 20%

3041 Unemployment Insurance $4,200.00 ($847.76) ($5,047.76) -20%

3042 Long Term Disability & Volunteer Program $25,200.00 $0.00 ($25,200.00) 0%

3043 Defer Comp Enployer Share $0.00 $12,769.66 $12,769.66 0%

3044 Vision $14,700.00 $1,201.27 ($13,498.73) 8%

3060 Workman's Compensation Insurance $612,087.00 $167,063.00 ($445,024.00) 27%

Total $12,345,240.00 $4,872,983.53 ($7,472,256.47) 39.47%

Salaries & Benefits

Expenditures / Uses: Class I

Preliminary

Budget

2024-2025

Expended

2024-2025

Over or Under

Budget
Sub

Percentage

Expended

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Preliminary Fire Operations Budget Summary 2024-2025

July 1, 2021 Throug August 31, 2024 17% Expended

9/13/2024 8:36 AM 2 of 5 Fire Operations Summary



4020 Clothing $15,000.00 $3,258.50 ($11,741.50) 22%

4021 Safety Equipment $26,500.00 $3,857.31 ($22,642.69) 15%

4022 Uniforms $15,000.00 ($201.30) ($15,201.30) -1%

4040 Communications $191,000.00 $9,883.89 ($181,116.11) 5%

4044 Cable/Internet Service $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

4060 Food $5,200.00 $1,555.07 ($3,644.93) 30%

4080 Warehouse Expenses $31,500.00 $3,098.50 ($28,401.50) 10%

4085 Refuse Disposal $19,950.00 $3,853.78 ($16,096.22) 19%

4087 Extermination $1,050.00 $775.00 ($275.00) 74%

4100 Insurance Premiums $186,300.00 $45,841.00 ($140,459.00) 25%

4140 Maintenance - Equipment $9,750.00 $4,316.80 ($5,433.20) 44%

4142 Maintenance - Radios $8,000.00 $147.84 ($7,852.16) 2%

4145 Maintenance - Equipment Parts $17,250.00 $0.00 ($17,250.00) 0%

4160 Maintenance - Vehicles $61,950.00 $8,331.58 ($53,618.42) 13%

4162 Maintenance - Vehicle Supplies $100,000.00 $12,676.15 ($87,323.85) 13%

4164 Maintenance -Tires & tubes $31,500.00 $0.00 ($31,500.00) 0%

4180 Maintenance - Buildings & Improvements $10,000.00 $2,178.63 ($7,821.37) 22%

4197 Building Supplies $15,750.00 $830.81 ($14,919.19) 5%

4200 Medical Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

4220 Memberships $10,000.00 $268.53 ($9,731.47) 3%

4260 Office Expense $10,500.00 $184.34 ($10,315.66) 2%

4261 Postage $3,150.00 $162.23 ($2,987.77) 5%

4263 Subscriptions $200.00 $0.00 ($200.00) 0%

4300 Professional & Specialized Services $281,305.00 $30,508.01 ($250,796.99) 11%

4304 Agency Administration $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

4313 Legal Services - Being Paid out of 4300 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 #DIV/0!

4324 Medical, Dental, & Lab Services $21,000.00 $180.00 ($20,820.00) 1%

4400 Publications & Legal Notices $1,000.00 $0.00 ($1,000.00) 0%

4420 Rent & Leases Equipment $19,215.00 $2,218.25 ($16,996.75) 12%

4440 Rents & Leases $525.00 $0.00 ($525.00) 0%

4461 Minor Equipment $84,700.00 $164.60 ($84,535.40) 0%

4462 Equipment: Computers $9,000.00 $0.00 ($9,000.00) 0%

4500 Special Departmental Expense $34,950.00 $1,385.62 ($33,564.38) 4%

4501 Educational Training $5,000.00 $0.00 ($5,000.00) 0%

4507 Fire & Safety Supplies $30,000.00 $1,000.00 ($29,000.00) 3%

4529 Software License $94,500.00 $22,442.28 ($72,057.72) 24%

4536 Retirement Benefit $60,000.00 $0.00 ($60,000.00) 0%

4617 Staff Development $20,800.00 $649.00 ($20,800.00) 3%

4600 Transportation & Travel $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

4606 Fuel Purchase - Bulk $162,750.00 $27,923.94 ($134,826.06) 17%

4700 Utilities $147,000.00 $15,114.49 ($131,885.51) 10%

 Total $1,741,295.00 $202,604.85 ($1,538,690.15) 12%

July 1, 2021Throug August 31, 2024 17% Expended

Sub Expenditures / Uses: Class II
Preliminary

Budget

2024-2025

Expended

2024-2025

Over or Under

Budget

Percentage

Expended

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Preliminary Fire Operations Budget Summary 2024-2025

9/13/2024 8:36 AM 3 of 5 Fire Operations Summary



5060 Retirement/Interest of Other Long Term Debt $99,204.00 $81,591.15 ($17,612.85) 82%

5100 Interest $38,836.00 $27,521.04 ($11,314.96) 71%

5142 Audit Findings $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

Total $138,040.00 $109,112.19 ($28,927.81) 79%

6020 Fixed Assets - Structures & Improvements $65,000.00 $2,024.17 ($62,975.83) 3%

6023 Fixed Assets - Construction Services - Station 17 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

6028 Fixed Assets - Construction Materials - Station 17 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

6040 Fixed Assets - Apparatus/Equipment $1,430,737.00 $6,891.09 ($1,423,845.91) 0%

6042 Fixed Assets -  Computer Systems $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%

Total $1,495,737.00 $8,915.26 ($1,486,821.74) 1%

Sub Expenditures: Class III
Preliminary

Budget

2024-2025

Expended

2024-2025

Over or Under

Budget

Percentage

Expended

Sub Fixed Assets - Class IV
Preliminary

Budget

2024-2025

Expended

2024-2025

Over or Under

Budget

Percentage

Expended

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

 Preliminary Fire Operations Budget Summary 2024-2025

July 1, 2021 Through August 31, 2024 17% Expended

9/13/2024 8:36 AM 4 of 5 Fire Operations Summary



$12,345,240.00 $4,872,983.53 ($7,472,256.47) 39%

$1,741,295.00 $202,604.85 ($1,538,690.15) 12%

$138,040.00 $109,112.19 ($28,927.81) 79%

$1,495,737.00 $8,915.26 ($1,486,821.74) 1%

$15,720,312.00 $5,193,615.83 ($10,526,696.17) 33%

Preliminary

Budget

2024-2025

Expended

2024-2025

Over or Under

Budget

Percentage

Expended

    Class IV: Fixed Assets

Expenditures: Class III

TOTALS

     Class II:  Service & Supplies

    Class III:  Long Term Debt

     Class I:  Salaries/Benefits

Over or (Under)

Budget

Percentage

Collected

Preliminary

Budget

2024-2025

Expended

2024-2025

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Preliminary Fire Operations Budget Summary 2024-2025

July 1, 2021 Through August 31, 2024 17% Expended

9/13/2024 8:36 AM 5 of 5 Fire Operations Summary



















































































 

 

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINE 

 

ARTICLE 2: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: 5/30/2017 

SECTION 32: STRIKE TEAM / OVERHEAD STAFFING LEVELS REVISED: 

 

2.30.1 PURPOSE: To establish a guideline to maintain adequate staffing levels for ECF, 

while providing auto/mutual aid through the CFAA and adhering to local and OES 

agreements. 

 
2.30.2 The maximum number of personnel that may be assigned, or under a “hard cover”, shall 

be 1311. This number may be exceeded or reduced at the direction of the Fire Chief 

and/or his/her designee. 
 

Target staffing levels for resources shall be as follows: 

• OES Engine - four (4) Three (3) personnel 

o Captain / Acting Captain 

o Firefighter/Paramedic Engineer / Acting Engineer 
o Firefighter/EMT 
o Firefighter/Paramedic or Firefighter/EMT 

• Strike Team Engine, Type 1 or 3 - three (3) personnel 

o Captain / Acting Captain 

o Firefighter/Paramedic Engineer / Acting Engineer 

o Firefighter/EMT 

The target staffing levels listed above may be altered at the discretion of the Fire Chief 
and/or his/her designee. Immediate need resources should not be delayed to achieve 

target staffing levels with regards to Paramedic & EMT staffing. 
 

Additional Engine(s), hired equipment or single resource - maximum three (3) personnel 

Overhead assignments for Chief Officers maximum of three (3) 
 

2.30.3 All requests for assignments must be approved by the Fire Chief and/or his/her designee. 
 

2.30.4 In the event of requests for multiple resources, attempts will be made to evenly assign 

personnel from multiple shifts, as to limit the impact to an individual shift. 
  

2.30.42.30.5 This SOG applies to a combination of both ECF and DSP personnel under the Shared 

Services Agreement, or until the annexation of DSP into ECF is completed. 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.82", Hanging:  0.25", Right: 

0", Space Before:  0 pt,  No bullets or numbering, Tab

stops: Not at  1.07" +  1.07"



El Dorado County Fire Protection District   Page 1  
Resolution No. 2024-07  

RESOLUTION  2024-07 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2024 

 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ESTABLISH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 

(UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY) OF THE EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Fire Protection District Law of 1987 (Health & Safety Code 
Section 13800 et seq.), the El Dorado County Fire Protection District (“District”) provides fire 
protection services, rescue services, emergency medical services, hazardous material emergency 
response services, and ambulance services throughout its service area; and 

WHEREAS, the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (Government Code Section 
53311 et seq.) (the “Act”) and the Fire Protection District Law of 1987 authorize the District to 
form community facilities districts and impose special taxes within those community facilities 
districts for the purpose of financing certain public services and facilities which are necessary to 
meet increased demands placed upon the District as a result of the development of real property 
within the territory to be included in the community facilities district; and 

WHEREAS, on August 15, 2024, the District received a petition (the “Petition”) satisfying 
the requirements of Section 53319 of the Government Code, submitted on behalf of the 
landowners, Harry and Carrie Boyajian, requesting that the Board of Directors conduct 
proceedings under the Act to create a community facilities district to be designated “Community 
Facilities District No. 1 (Unincorporated Territory) of the El Dorado County Fire Protection 
District” (“the CFD” or “CFD No. 1”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53339.2 of the Government Code, the Board of Directors 
desires to undertake proceedings to provide for the future annexation of territory to the 
proposed community facilities district;  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that: 

1. The above recitals are true and correct. 

2. Intention to Establish CFD. The Board of Directors proposes to conduct proceedings to 
establish a community facilities district pursuant to the Act, and determines that public 
convenience and necessity require the formation of the community services district and 
a future annexation area to fund public services. 

3. Name of Proposed CFD; Name of Future Annexation Area. The name proposed for the 
community facilities district is “Community Facilities District No. 1 (Unincorporated 
Territory) of the El Dorado County Fire Protection District” (“CFD No. 1”). The name 
proposed for the territory proposed to be annexed into CFD No. 1 in the future is 



El Dorado County Fire Protection District   Page 2  
Resolution No. 2024-07  

“Community Facilities District No. 1 (Unincorporated Territory) of the El Dorado County 
Fire Protection District (Future Annexation Area)” (the “Future Annexation Area”). 

4. Proposed Boundaries. The proposed boundaries of CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation 
Area are as shown on two maps, the Boundary Map and the Future Annexation Area Map, 
on file with the District Clerk of the Board, copies of which are attached as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by reference. The proposed boundaries, Boundary Map, and Future 
Annexation Area Map are preliminarily approved. The Clerk of the Board is directed to 
record, or cause to be recorded, the map of the boundaries of CFD No. 1 and the Future 
Annexation Area in the office of the El Dorado County Recorder-Clerk as soon as 
practicable after the adoption of this Resolution. 

5. Annexation of Territory. Parcels within the Future Annexation Area may be annexed to 
CFD No. 1 only with unanimous approval of the owner or owners of each parcel or parcels 
at the time that parcel or those parcels are annexed, without any requirement for further 
public hearings or additional proceedings. 

6. Proposed Services. The types of services (the “Services”) proposed to be funded within 
CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation Area by proceeds of special taxes of CFD No. 1 are 
set forth in Exhibit B, which is attached and incorporated herein by reference. 

The Board of Directors determines that the Services are necessary to meet increased 
demands for these services placed upon local agencies due to development occurring 
within CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation Area. The Services are in addition to those 
provided in the territory of CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation Area as of the date of 
adoption of this resolution and will not supplant services already available within the 
territory of CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation Area as of the date of adoption of this 
resolution. 

The proposed community facilities district shall also finance administrative expenses 
associated with the determination of the amount of and the levy and collection of special 
taxes that are levied to provide the Services, and costs otherwise incurred to carry out 
the authorized purposes of the community facilities district. 

7. Special Tax. Except to the extent that funds are otherwise available to CFD No. 1 to pay 
for the Services and administrative expenses of CFD No. 1, a special tax (the “Special Tax”) 
sufficient to pay the costs of the Services, secured by recordation of a continuing lien 
against all non-exempt property in CFD No. 1, will be annually levied within the proposed 
community facilities district. The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as 
ordinary ad valorem property taxes or in such other manner as this Board of Directors or 
its designee shall determine, including direct billing of the affected property owners. The 
proposed rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax (the “Rate and Method”) 
among the parcels of real property within CFD No. 1, in sufficient detail to allow each 
landowner within the proposed community facilities district to estimate the maximum 
amounts the owner will have to pay, are described in Exhibit C, which is attached and 



El Dorado County Fire Protection District   Page 3  
Resolution No. 2024-07  

incorporated herein by reference. All matters pertaining to the calculation, levy, 
collection, administration, and duration of the Special Tax shall be governed by the 
applicable provisions of the Rate and Method as supplemented, if necessary, by the 
applicable provisions of the Act. The Board of Directors finds that the provisions of Section 
53313.6, 53313.7, and 53313.9 of the Government Code (relating to adjustments to ad 
valorem property taxes and schools financed by a community facilities district) are 
inapplicable to CFD No. 1. 

The Board of Directors determines that the Special Tax proposed to pay for the Services 
to be supplied within the Future Annexation Area shall be equal to any special tax levied 
to pay for the same Services in the existing CFD No. 1, except that a higher or lower tax 
may be levied within the Future Annexation Area to the extent that the actual cost of 
providing the Services in the Future Annexation Area is higher or lower than the cost of 
providing those Services in the existing CFD No. 1. In so finding, the Board of Directors 
does not intend to limit its ability to levy a special tax within the Future Annexation Area 
to provide new or additional services beyond those supplied within the existing CFD No. 
1. 

8. Exempt Properties. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the Rate and 
Method, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State of 
California, El Dorado County, and any departments or political subdivisions of any thereof, 
shall be omitted from the levy of the Special Tax. 

9. Voting Procedures. The levy of the proposed Special Tax shall be subject to the approval 
of the qualified electors of the proposed CFD No. 1 at a special election. The proposed 
voting procedure shall be by mailed or hand-delivered ballots among the landowners in 
the proposed CFD No. 1, with each owner having one vote for each acre or portion of an 
acre of land such owner owns within the boundaries of CFD No. 1. 

The Special Tax shall be levied in the Future Annexation Area only with unanimous 
approval of the owner or owners of each parcel or parcels at the time that parcel or those 
parcels are annexed, without any requirement for further public hearings or additional 
proceedings. 

10. Report. The Fire Chief, or designee, is directed to study the proposed CFD No. 1 and the 
proposed Services and to make, or cause to be made, and file with the Clerk of the Board 
a report in writing (the “Report”), presenting the following: 

a. A description of the Services that will be required to adequately meet the needs of 
CFD No. 1. 

b. An estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of the Services and the incidental expenses 
in connection therewith, and all other related costs. 

The Report shall be made a part of the record of the public hearing provided for below. 



El Dorado County Fire Protection District   Page 4  
Resolution No. 2024-07  

11. Public Hearing. The Board of Directors sets    , 2024, at   P.M., or as 
soon as possible thereafter, in the Board Chambers, City of Placerville Town Hall building, 
549 Main Street, Placerville, California, as the time and place to conduct a public hearing 
on the establishment of CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation Area. (The public hearing 
will be conducted no earlier than 30 days after this Resolution is adopted and no later 
than 60 days after this Resolution is adopted.) The public hearing will be accessible to the 
public for participation via teleconference and Zoom (the meeting agenda will include 
Zoom dial-in information for phone and log-in information for video, and will be posted 
to the following website, under agendas for the current year, in advance of the meeting: 
https://www.eldoradocountyfire.com/board-meetings). 

At the hearing, testimony of all interested persons for or against establishment of CFD 
No. 1 and the Future Annexation Area, the extent of CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation 
Area, the proposed list of Services to be authorized, the proposed Rate and Method of 
Apportionment, or any other aspect of the proposed CFD No. 1 and the Future Annexation 
Area will be heard and protests will be considered. As provided by the Act, written 
protests by the owners of a majority in area of the land within the proposed CFD No. 1 
will constitute a "majority protest" and will require the suspension of proceedings for at 
least one year. Written protests must be filed with the Clerk of the Board at or before the 
time fixed for the hearing. If such majority protests are directed only against certain 
elements of the proposed Services or proposed Special Tax, only those elements shall be 
deleted from the proceedings. 

12. Notice. The Clerk of the Board is directed to cause notice of the public hearing to be given 
by publication one time in a newspaper published in the area of CFD No. 1 and the Future 
Annexation Area. The publication shall be completed at least seven days before the date 
of the public hearing specified above. The notice of the public hearing shall be 
substantially in the form specified in Section 53322 of the Government Code. 

The Clerk of the Board may also cause notice of the hearing to be given to each property 
owner within CFD No. 1 by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each owner's address as it 
appears on the most recent tax records of the County or as otherwise known to the Clerk 
of the Board to be correct. The mailing shall be completed not less than 15 days before 
the date of the public hearing. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

(This area intentionally left blank.) 



El Dorado County Fire Protection District   Page 5  
Resolution No. 2024-07  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the El Dorado County Fire Protection 
District, at a meeting held on the 19th of September, Two-thousand and Twenty-Four, by the 
following vote of said Board: 
 
September 19, 2024 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
             
Chair Secretary 
Board of Directors Board of Directors 



 

 
El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

Resolution 2024-07 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

The map of the proposed boundaries of CFD No. 1 and the map of the proposed boundaries of 
the Future Annexation Area are attached. 

  



B
O

Y
A

JI
A

N
A

P
N

 1
0

9-
34

0
-0

69
D

O
C

 #
20

14
-0

0
12

52
3

L
A

N
G

D
O

N
A

P
N
 1

0
9
-4

6
0
-0

14
D

O
C

#
 2

0
0
4
-0

0
8
8
5
5
6

C
E
R
T
A

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

4
0
-0

7
3

D
O

C
#

 2
0
18

-0
0
4
8
2
9
3

W
IR

T
H

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

4
0
-0

3
1

D
O

C
#

 2
0
0
9
-0

0
4
6
2
13

B
A

R
N
E
S

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-4

6
0
-0

15
D

O
C

#
 2

0
16

-0
0
5
9
6
18

G
U
L
B
R
A

N
S
E
N

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

11
-0

19
D

O
C

#
 2

0
18

-0
0
17

6
4
3

R
E
Y

N
O

L
D

S
A

P
N
 1

0
9
-3

11
-0

2
0

D
O

C
#

 2
0
2
2
-0

0
0
5
18

1

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

11
-0

2
2

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

11
-0

2
3

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

11
-0

2
4

R
A

D
D

IG
A

N
A

P
N
 1

0
9
-3

4
0
-0

15
D

O
C

#
 2

0
2
0
-0

0
2
4
7
2
6

O
L
D

F
IE

L
D

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

4
0
-0

16
D

O
C

#
 2

0
19

-0
0
2
8
2
6
8

W
IL

D
 1

 R
A

N
C

H
 L

L
C

A
P
N
 1

0
9
-3

4
0
-0

13
D

O
C

#
 2

0
2
1-

0
0
4
9
5
13

B
IG

 B
R

A
N

C
H

 R
O

A
D

SOUTH SHINGLE ROAD

N
10

0 1 
IN

C
H

 =
 1

0
0

 F
EE

T

10
0

20
0

0

C
LE

R
K

'S
 S

TA
TE

M
EN

T
FI

LE
D

 IN
 T

H
E 

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

C
LE

RK
 O

F 
EL

 D
O

RA
D

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 F
IR

E 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
TH

IS
__

__
 D

A
Y

 O
F 

__
__

, 2
0

__
.

I H
ER

EB
Y

 C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

A
T 

TH
E 

W
IT

H
IN

 M
A

P 
SH

O
W

IN
G

 P
RO

PO
SE

D
 B

O
U

N
D

A
RI

ES
 O

F
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
N

O
.1

 (U
N

IN
C

O
RP

O
RA

TE
D

 T
ER

RI
TO

RY
) O

F 
TH

E 
EL

 D
O

RA
D

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 F
IR

E
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 D
IS

TR
IC

T,
 C

O
U

N
TY

 O
F 

EL
 D

O
RA

D
O

, S
TA

TE
 O

F 
C

A
LI

FO
RN

IA
, W

A
S 

A
PP

RO
V

ED
 B

Y
TH

E
BO

A
RD

 O
F 

D
IR

EC
TO

RS
 O

F 
EL

 D
O

RA
D

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 F
IR

E 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
A

T 
A

 R
EG

U
LA

R
M

EE
TI

N
G

TH
ER

EO
F,

 H
EL

D
 O

N
 T

H
E 

__
__

 D
A

Y
 O

F 
__

__
, 2

0
__

, B
Y

 IT
S 

RE
SO

LU
TI

O
N

 N
O

. _
__

_.

BY
: _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

 C
LE

RK
 O

F 
EL

 D
O

RA
D

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 F
IR

E 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 D
IS

TR
IC

T

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
IE

S 
O

F

EL
 D

O
R

A
D

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 F
IR

E 
P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

N
O

. 1

C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
EL

 D
O

R
A

D
O

ST
A

TE
 O

F 
C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

R
EC

O
R

D
ER

'S
 S

TA
TE

M
EN

T
FI

LE
D

 T
H

IS
 _

__
_ 

D
A

Y
 O

F 
__

__
, 2

0
__

, A
T 

TH
E 

H
O

U
R 

O
F 

__
__

 O
'C

LO
C

K 
_M

. I
N

 B
O

O
K 

__
__

 O
F 

M
A

PS
 O

F 
A

SS
ES

SM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S 

D
IS

TR
IC

TS
 A

T 
PA

G
E 

__
__

, 
IN

 T
H

E 
O

FF
IC

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

 R
EC

O
RD

ER
 I

N
 T

H
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
EL

 D
O

RA
D

O
, 

ST
A

TE
 O

F

C
A

LI
FO

RN
IA

.

BY
: _

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

EC
O

RD
ER

, C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
EL

 D
O

RA
D

O

LE
G

EN
D

BO
U

N
D

A
RY

 L
IN

E

A
D

JA
C

EN
T 

BO
U

N
D

A
RY

 L
IN

E



P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

F
ut

ur
e 

A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

A
re

a
E

l D
or

ad
o 

C
ou

nt
y 

F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
D

is
tr

ic
t N

o.
 1

 (
F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

E
P

IC
T

IO
N

 W
A

S
 C

O
M

P
IL

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 U
N

V
E

R
IF

IE
D

 P
U

B
LI

C
 A

N
D

 P
R

IV
A

T
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 A

N
D

 IS
 IL

LU
S

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 O
N

LY
.

N
O

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

TA
T

IO
N

 IS
 M

A
D

E
 A

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

 A
C

C
U

R
A

C
Y

 O
F

 T
H

IS
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

.  
P

A
R

C
E

L 
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

IE
S

 A
R

E
P

A
R

T
IC

U
LA

R
LY

 U
N

R
E

LI
A

B
LE

.  
U

S
E

R
S

 M
A

K
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 D
E

P
IC

T
IO

N
 A

T
 T

H
E

IR
 O

W
N

 R
IS

K
.

N
O

T
E

S
:

LA
Y

E
R

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
Y

 C
O

V
E

R
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
A

R
E

A
S

 O
U

T
S

ID
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 D

IS
P

LA
Y

E
D

 A
R

E
A

.
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 A

T
 T

H
E

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 O

F
: C

ap
ito

l P
ub

lic
 F

in
an

ce
 G

ro
up

, L
LC

 D
A

T
E

:  
8/

21
/2

02
4

M
A

P
 P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
: E

D
C

 G
IS

 D
A

T
E

:  
9/

10
/2

02
4

G
.I.

S
. P

R
O

JE
C

T
 ID

: P
8L

D
15

2A
A

1,
   

R
E

LA
T

E
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T:

  N
/A

E
L 

D
O

R
A

D
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

/G
.I.

S
. D

IV
IS

IO
N

E
M

A
IL

: g
is

@
ed

cg
ov

.u
s 

P
H

O
N

E
: (

53
0)

 6
21

-5
44

0
M

A
P

 D
IS

P
LA

Y
E

D
 IN

 S
TA

T
E

 P
LA

N
E

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
T

E
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
(N

A
D

 1
98

3 
C

A
LI

F
O

R
N

IA
 Z

O
N

E
 2

, F
E

E
T

)

0
10

5
M

ile
s

Co
un

ty
 O

ut
lin

e
H

ig
hw

ay
s

El
 D

or
ad

o 
Co

un
ty

 F
PD

*

Le
ge

nd

²

F
ile

d 
in

 th
e 

of
fic

e 
of

 th
e 

C
le

rk
 o

f E
l D

or
ad

o 
C

ou
nt

y
F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t t

hi
s 

__
__

da
y 

of
 _

__
__

__
,

20
__

__
.I 

he
re

by
 c

er
tif

y 
th

at
 th

e 
w

ith
in

 m
ap

sh
ow

in
g 

pr
op

os
ed

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

of
 E

l D
or

ad
o

C
ou

nt
y 

F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
om

m
un

ity
F

ac
ili

tie
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t N
o.

 _
__

__
 A

nn
ex

at
io

n 
N

o.
__

__
__

__
__

,C
ou

nt
y 

of
 E

l D
or

ad
o,

 S
ta

te
 o

f
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s
of

 E
l D

or
ad

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t a

t a
re

gu
la

r 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

er
eo

f, 
he

ld
 o

n 
th

e 
__

__
da

y 
of

__
__

__
__

_,
 2

0_
_,

 b
y 

its
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
__

__
__

__
_.

B
y:

 _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

 C
le

rk
 o

f E
l D

or
ad

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

F
ile

d 
th

is
 _

__
_ 

da
y 

of
 _

__
__

__
_,

 2
0_

__
, a

t t
he

ho
ur

 o
f _

__
_ 

o'
cl

oc
k 

__
m

. i
n 

B
oo

k 
__

__
 o

f M
ap

s
of

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

at
 p

ag
e 

__
__

, i
n 

th
e 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nt
y 

R
ec

or
de

r
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 E

l D
or

ad
o,

 S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
.

B
y:

 _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
C

ou
nt

y 
R

ec
or

de
r, 

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 E

l D
or

ad
o

Co
un

ty
 o

f 
El

 D
or

ad
o,

 S
ta

te
 o

f 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
ns

Re
co

rd
in

g 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

E
L 

D
O

R
A

D
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 F
P

D

STATE HWY89

ST
AT

E
HW

Y
193

STATE HWY 8 9

U
S

H
W

Y
50

U
SH

W
Y

50

ST
AT

E
H

W
Y

49

STATE HWY 49

S
TA

T
E

HW

Y

89

ST
AT

EH
W

Y
88

M
EE

KS
 B

AY

SO
U

TH
 L

AK
E 

TA
H

O
E

Fa
lle

n 
Le

af

M
EY

ER
S

ST
R
AW

BE
R
R
Y

Tw
in

 B
rid

ge
s Ph

ill
ip

s

Sc
io

ts
 C

am
p

KY
BU

R
Z

W
hi

te
 H

al
l

PO
LL

O
CK

 P
IN

ES

G
R
IZ

ZL
Y 

FL
AT

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
VA

LL
EY

H
ap

py
 V

al
le

y

SO
M

ER
SE

T

Ki
rk

w
oo

d

FA
IR

PL
AY

O
m

o 
R
an

ch

O
U

TI
N

G
D

AL
E

M
T.

 A
U

KU
M Co

yo
te

vi
lle

N
as

hv
ill

e

EL
 D

O
R
AD

OD
IA

M
O

N
D

 S
PR

IN
G

S

CA
M

ER
O

N
 P

AR
K

SH
IN

G
LE

 S
PR

IN
G

S

LA
TR

O
BE

Fr
en

ch
to

w
n

EL
 D

O
R
AD

O
 H

IL
LS

R
ES

CU
E

Co
ld

 S
pr

in
gs

CO
LO

M
A

Lo
tu

s
KE

LS
EY

CO
O

L PI
LO

T 
H

IL
L

Sp
an

is
h 

Fl
at

G
AR

D
EN

 V
AL

LE
Y

G
EO

R
G

ET
O

W
N

G
re

en
w

oo
d

Vo
lc

an
ov

ill
e

Q
ui

nt
et

te

M
os

qu
ito

CA
M

IN
O

Sm
ith

 F
la

t
PL

AC
ER

VI
LL

E

N
ew

to
w

n

*N
O

TE
: 

Bo
un

da
rie

s 
of

 A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

 a
re

Co
-t

er
m

in
us

 w
ith

 t
he

 E
l D

or
ad

o 
Co

un
ty

 F
ire

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

Bo
un

da
rie

s.



 

El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Resolution 2024-07 

 
 

Exhibit B 
 

Description of the types of services (the “Services”) proposed to be funded within Community 
Facilities District No. 1 (Unincorporated Territory) of the El Dorado County Fire Protection 

District (“the CFD” or “CFD No. 1”) and the Future Annexation Area by proceeds of special taxes 
of CFD No. 1: 

 
Fire protection services, rescue services, emergency medical services, hazardous material 
emergency response services, ambulance services and any other services relating to the 
protection of lives and property necessitated by development or planned development including 
but not limited to (i) the costs of contracting services, (ii) equipment, vehicles, ambulances and 
paramedics, fire apparatus, supplies, (iii) the salaries and benefits of El Dorado County Fire 
Protection District (“District”) staff that directly provide fire protection services, rescue services, 
emergency medical services, hazardous material emergency response services, ambulance 
services and any other services relating to the protection of lives and property necessitated by 
development as defined herein, respectively, and (iv) District overhead costs associated with 
providing such services within the CFD. On each July 1 following the Base Year, the increases 
attributed to salaries and benefits shall be calculated and limited to the increase based on the 
Annual Escalation Factor. The Special Tax will finance Services that are in addition to those 
provided in or required for the territory within the CFD and will not be replacing Services already 
available. The Special Tax provides only partial funding for fire suppression services, emergency 
medical services, and fire prevention activities operation and maintenance. 
  



 

El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Resolution 2024-07 

 
 

Exhibit C 
 

The proposed rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax (the “Rate and Method”) 
among the parcels of real property within Community Facilities District No. 1 (Unincorporated 
Territory) of the El Dorado County Fire Protection District (“the CFD” or “CFD No. 1”) and the 
Future Annexation Area is attached. 

 



- 1 -

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX 
EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Community Facilities District No. 1 
(Unincorporated Territory) 

A Special Tax authorized under the Mello-Roos Community Services and Facilities Act of 1982 applicable 
to the land in the Community Facilities District No. 1 of the El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
(the "CFD") shall be levied and collected according to the tax liability determined by the El Dorado County 
Fire Protection District (the "District") through the application of the appropriate amount or rate, as shown 
below.  

A. DEFINITIONS

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Services and Facilities Act of 1982, being Chapter 2.5, 
Part 1, Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended, which 
authorizes the establishment of the CFD to finance: a) fire protection and suppression Services and 
Facilities; b) fire and emergency medical equipment; and c) other fire department operations, 
Services and Facilities provided by the District.  

“Accessory Dwelling Unit” means any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property for which a 
building permit has been issued by the County for construction of a secondary dwelling unit with 
complete independent living facilities for one or more persons as defined by the County and shall 
not exceed 1,200 square feet. 

"Administrative Expenses" means the actual or estimated costs incurred by the District to 
determine, levy, and collect the Special Taxes, including the proportionate amount of the salaries 
and benefits of District employees whose duties are directly related to administration of the CFD 
and the fees of Special Tax levy administrator, other consultants, legal counsel, the costs of 
collecting installments of the Special Taxes upon the County tax rolls and any other incidental 
costs as determined by the District.  

"Annual Escalation Factor" means an amount equal to the percentage increase during the 
preceding year as determined by the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI), as 
published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, as reflected in the then-
current April update, or if this index ceases publication, an equivalent index. In the event that the 
percentage change in the CPI is negative, the Annual Escalation Factor shall be 0%. 

"Annual Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax, determined in accordance with Section E 
below to be levied in the CFD in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel.  

"Assessor's Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an assigned 
assessor's parcel number.  

"Authorized Services and Facilities" means those Services and Facilities listed in the Resolution 
of the Board of Directors of the El Dorado County Fire Protection District Declaration Intention 
to Establish the CFD.  



- 2 -

"Base Year" means the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2025.  

"Building Area" means the total of the gross area of the floor surfaces within the exterior wall of 
the building constructed or to be constructed, including basements, garages, and enclosed patios, 
but not including covered public pedestrian circulation areas or unenclosed patio covers or other 
shelters.  

"Board" means the Board of Directors of the El Dorado County Fire Protection District, acting as 
the legislative body of the District and the CFD.  

"CFD" means Community Facilities District No. 1 (Unincorporated Territory) of the El Dorado 
County Fire Protection District.  

"CFD Administrator" means an official of the District, or designee thereof, responsible for 
determining and providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.  

"County" means the County of El Dorado, California.  

"Developed Property" means all Assessor's Parcels subject to the Special Tax for which a building 
permit has been approved and recorded by June 1 of the prior Fiscal Year.  

"District" means the El Dorado County Fire Protection District.  

"Fire Protection Service and Facility Costs" means the estimated and reasonable costs of 
providing the Authorized Services and Facilities, including, but not limited to, a) the costs of 
contracting services; b) the costs of equipment, vehicles, ambulances, paramedics, fire apparatus, 
and supplies; c) the salaries and benefits of District staff that directly provide fire suppression 
services, emergency medical services, fire prevention activities, and other services as defined 
herein, respectively; and d) District overhead costs associated with providing such Services and 
Facilities within the CFD.  

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending the following June 30.  

“High Hazard Non-Residential” means Non-Residential property with a building occupancy 
determined to be a high hazard risk by National Fire Protection Association standards as identified 
by the Fire Chief or his or her designee. 

“Low Hazard Non-Residential” means Non-Residential property with a building occupancy 
determined to be a low hazard risk by National Fire Protection Association standards as identified 
by the Fire Chief or his or her designee. 

"Maximum Special Tax" means the maximum Special Tax, determined in accordance with 
Sections B and C below that can be levied in the CFD in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel. 

"Multi-Family Residential" means any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property for which a 
building permit has been issued by the County for construction of a structure with more than one 
Residential Unit. This category includes but is not limited to apartment buildings, condominiums, 
duplexes, triplexes, fourplexes, or mobile homes.  



- 3 -

"Non-Residential" means all Assessor Parcels of Developed Property for which a building permit 
has been issued by the County for the construction of one or more units not classified as residential 
property.  

"Single-Family Residential" means any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property for which a 
building permit has been issued by the County for construction of at least one single family 
residential unit and is not Multi-Family Residential.  

"Special Tax" means the Special Tax to be levied, in each Fiscal Year, on Taxable Parcels, pursuant 
to Sections B, C, and D below.  

"Special Tax Requirement" means the amount required in any Fiscal Year for the CFD to: a) pay 
for Fire Protection Service and Facility Costs; b) pay for reasonable Administrative Expenses; c) 
pay any amounts required to establish or replenish any reserve funds; and d) pay for reasonably 
anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes levied in the 
previous Fiscal Year.  

“Square Foot” means the measured square footage of Building Area. 

"State" means the State of California.  

"Residential Unit" or "Residential Units" means each separate residential dwelling unit on an 
Assessor's Parcel that comprises an independent facility capable of conveyance or rental as distinct 
from adjacent residential dwelling units.  

"Taxable Parcel" means any Parcel that is not exempt from Special Taxes as defined within this 
Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.  

"Tax-Exempt Property" means any Parcel within the CFD which is not Developed or 
Undeveloped Property, and includes property owned or operated by a public District or exempted 
for some other reason.  

"Undeveloped Property" means any Assessor's Parcel which is Zoned for any use, is not Tax-
Exempt Property, and for which no building permit has been approved and issued by June 1 of the 
previous Fiscal Year.  

"Unit" means any separate residential dwelling unit in which a person or persons may live, which 
comprises an independent facility capable of conveyance separate from adjacent residential 
dwelling units and is not considered to be for commercial or industrial use. 

"Zoned" means use, zoning, allowed or designated on the applicable General Plan, Specific Plan, 
or Community Plan which the County of El Dorado utilizes and relies upon for planning purposes 
and for the approval of development.  

B. CALCULATION OF MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Special Tax shall be calculated as follows:



- 4 -

1. Classification of Parcels. Each Fiscal Year, using the Definitions above and the parcel records
of the County Assessor's Secured Tax Roll of July 1, the District shall cause each parcel of land in
the CFD to be classified as Developed Property, Undeveloped Property, or Tax-Exempt Property.
The District shall cause all Developed Property to be further classified as Single Family
Residential, Multi-Family Residential, Accessory Dwelling Unit, Non-Residential, Low Hazard
Non-Residential, and High Hazard Non-Residential.

2. Assignment of Maximum Special Tax. Each Fiscal Year, the Base Year Maximum Tax Rates
shown below shall be escalated as specified in Section C, Annual Adjustment of Maximum Special
Tax, to determine the Maximum Special Tax Rate for the upcoming Fiscal Year.

Parcel Classification 
Base Year Maximum Tax 

Rate 
Single Family Residential $675 per Unit 

Multi-Family Residential $540 per Unit 

Accessory Dwelling Unit $540 per Unit 

Non-Residential $0.27 per Square Foot 

Low Hazard Non-Residential $0.14 per Square Foot 

High Hazard Non-Residential $0.54 per Square Foot 

Tax-Exempt Property $0 

3. Conversion of a Tax-Exempt Property to a Taxable Property. If a Tax-Exempt Property is
not needed for public use and is converted to private use, it shall become subject to the Special
Tax.

C. ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT OF MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

Beginning on July 1, 2025 and each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Special Tax shall be adjusted by the 
Annual Escalation Factor.  

D. CALCULATION OF THE ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX

Commencing with Fiscal Year 2024-25, and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the Board shall determine 
the Special Tax Requirement and shall levy the Annual Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Developed 
Property to fund the Special Tax Requirement. The Board shall not levy an Annual Special Tax on 1) 
Undeveloped Property or 2) Tax-Exempt Property. Subject to the foregoing, the amount of Annual Special 
Tax levied upon any Developed Property in any Fiscal Year shall not exceed the Maximum Special Tax 
for such Fiscal Year as computed herein.  



- 5 -

E. DURATION OF THE SPECIAL TAX

Assessor's Parcels in the CFD shall remain subject to the Special Tax in perpetuity. If the Special Tax 
ceases to be levied, the District or its designee shall direct the County Recorder to record a Notice of 
Cessation of Special Tax. Such notice will state that the obligation to pay the Special Tax has ceased and 
that the lien imposed by the Notice of Special Tax Lien is extinguished.  

The Special Tax may not be prepaid. 

F. APPEALS AND INTERPRETATION PROCEDURE

The Board reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that do 
not materially affect the rate and method of apportioning the Maximum Special Tax Rates. In addition, 
the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the Board’s discretion. 

Any property owner who feels that the portion of the Special Tax levied on the subject property is in error 
may file a written appeal no later than April 10 of the Fiscal Year in which the levy occurred, with the Fire 
Chief or his or her designee, appealing the levy of the Special Tax on the subject property. The Fire Chief 
or his or her designee will promptly review the appeal, and, if necessary, meet with the applicant and 
decide the merits of the appeal. If the findings of the Fire Chief or his or her designee verify that the 
Special Tax levied should be modified, the Special Tax levy for future Fiscal Years shall be corrected, and 
a credit against future Special Taxes shall be arranged, if applicable. Any overcharges shall be corrected 
solely by means of adjustments to future Special Tax levies; no cash refunds shall be made.  

Any dispute over the decision of the Fire Chief or his or her designee shall be referred to the Board and 
the decision of the Board shall be final. Interpretation may be made by resolution of the Board for purposes 
of clarifying any vagueness or uncertainty as it relates to the application of the Special Tax rate or the 
method of apportionment or the classification of properties or any definition applicable to the CFD.  

G. COLLECTION OF THE SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be collected each year in the same manner and at the same time as ad valorem 
property taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same penalties and lien priorities in the case of 
delinquency as is provided for ad valorem taxes. The District shall cause the actions required above to be 
done for each Fiscal Year in a timely manner to assure that the schedule of the Special Taxes to be collected 
are received by the County Auditor for inclusion with billings for such ad valorem taxes for the applicable 
Fiscal Year.  

The District may directly bill the Special Tax, may collect the Special Tax at a different time or in a 
different manner if needed to meet the financial obligations of the District, and may collect delinquent 
Special Taxes through foreclosure or other available methods. 



- 6 -

H. ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY

Any territory within the District and in the unincorporated area of El Dorado County has been identified 
as the future annexation area of the CFD. Any territory to be annexed to the CFD shall, in addition to 
payment of Special Taxes at the rate set forth above, may subject to payment of any costs incurred by the 
District in conducting the annexation process. 



 1 

 
 

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION 2024-06 

 
ADOPTING THE FINAL  

FIRE OPERATIONS BUDGET 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024 - 2025 

 
 WHEREAS, the Final Fire Operations Budget has been reviewed and revised to meet 
anticipated revenue and expected expenditures; 

  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 13900, a two-thirds majority vote of the 
total membership of the District Board shall be required for the future appropriation of any of the 
following: 
 
 (a) Balances in appropriations for contingencies, including accretions from   
  cancellations of appropriations. 
 (b) Designations and reserves no longer required for the purpose for which 
  Intended, excluding the general reserve, balance sheet reserves, and 
  Reserve for encumbrances. 
 (c) Amounts which are either in excess of anticipated amounts not     
  specifically set forth in the budget derived from any or anticipated 
  Increases in available financing. 
 

WHEREAS; Pursuant to Government Code Sections 50075-50077.5, funds received from voter 
approved special taxes in the Coloma-Lotus, Pollock Pines-Camino, Pleasant Valley, Strawberry, and 
the Northside (Cool-Pilot Hill) areas have been designated for the specific purposes as defined in each 
ballot measure.  Additionally, the proceeds are deposited into a special account at the El Dorado County 
Auditor-Controller Office and those funds will be used exclusive for such purposes.   

 
WHEREAS; Pursuant to Government Code Sections 50078, funds received from the voter 

approved Fire Suppression assessment has been designated for the specific purposes as defined in the 
ballot measure.  Additionally, the proceeds are deposited into a special account at the El Dorado County 
Auditor-Controller Office and those funds will be used exclusive for such purposes.   

 

 WHEREAS; a public hearing on the adoption of the Final Budget was held on September 19, 
2024. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Final 2024-2025 Fiscal Year Budget, in the 
amount of $16,227,305.00 with a derived revenue of $16,477,907.00 for Fire Operations attached hereto 
and identified as EXHIBAT “A”, and is hereby approved and adopted. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of September 2024. 
 
EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE 

ATTEST:         PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
   
         ____________________________ 
_______________________________________ 

                   Chairman, Board of Directors 
Secretary, El Dorado County Fire Protection District  

            





























 
 

To:    Board of Directors 
From:  Tim Cordero, Fire Chief 
Date:   September 2, 2024 
Subject:  Payment to Golden State Fire Apparatus 
 
   
The Board of Directors has previously authorized the purchase of three (3) Type 
1 Fire Engines from Pierce Manufacturing, via our local dealer, Golden State 
Fire Apparatus.  Pierce Manufacturing has completed the building of our 
engines, which included a final inspection by ECF personnel.  The final payment 
for two (2) of the engines is now due, the Board previously authorized the pre-
payment of the third engine upon the initial order.   
 
The final invoice for the two remaining engines is $1,408,010.13, which includes 
change order #1 for $12,989.30 and change order #2 for $1,717.46.  Also 
included in the final invoice is the sales tax and California Tire Fee. 
 
Staff would recommend the Board of Directors authorize the payment to Golden 
State Fire Apparatus in the amount of $1,408,010.13. 
 
Attachment(s): 
Golden State Fire Apparatus Invoice #750158 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

  

www.goldenstatefire.com   |  7400 Reese Road, Sacramento, CA 95828  |  Office 916.330.1638  |  Fax 916.330.1649 

 

 

 

INVOICE 
Date Invoice # Your Order # Our Order # Terms 

08/19/2024 750158 04/18/2022 
CONTRACT 

38760 01-02 Net 30 Days 

 

El Dorado County Fire District 
4040 Carson Road  
Camino, CA 95709 
 

 

 

 
 

 

# Description Unit Price 
A Two (2) Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. Enforcer MEDIUM 1500 GPM Pumpers 1,298,103.62 
B Change Order 1 approved 12/12/23 12,989.30 
C Change Order 2  1,717.46 
D SUBTOTAL 1,312,810.38 
E 7.25% State Sales Tax 95,178.75 
F California Tire Fee 21.00 
G GRAND TOTAL (AMOUNT DUE GSFA) 1,408,010.13 



 
 

To:    Board of Directors 
From:  Tim Cordero, Fire Chief 
Date:   September 4, 2024 
Subject:  Cal Fire Cooperative Agreement 
 
   
The district has been in a cooperative agreement with Cal Fire for coverage in 
the Camino area since 2021.  This agreement has allowed for enhanced staffing 
levels on ECF Engines 17 & 19, while maintaining “all-risk” fire protection for 
the community of Camino provided by Cal Fire Station 20.  This agreement has 
also allowed for additional coverage in the Diamond Springs / El Dorado area 
with augmented staffing at Station 43. 
 
Chief Blankenheim has provided the district with a renewal agreement for the 
continuation of the current “Amador Plan” for Station 20, in Camino.  One 
change to the proposed agreement is that Cal Fire is now recognizing the fire 
season as 9 months.  Therefore, the projected “not to exceed costs” is based on 
the remaining 3 months of the calendar year and is likely fairly close to actual 
costs.  The proposed agreement would be in effect from July 1, 2024, through 
June 30, 2027 with a not to exceed cost of $480,130.00. 
 
Staff would recommend the Board of Directors authorize the Fire Chief to renew 
the Cooperative Agreement 2CA06879 with Cal Fire, securing fire protection 
services for the community of Camino. 
 
Attachments: 
Cooperative Fire Programs Agreement 2CA06879 
 
 
 
 



 

 
COOPERATIVE FIRE PROGRAMS 
FIRE PROTECTION REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
LG-1    REV. 8/2024 

 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 2CA06879 

REGISTRATION NUMBER:  

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Local Agency named below: 
STATE AGENCY'S NAME 

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection – (CAL FIRE) 

LOCAL AGENCY’S NAME 

El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

2. The term of this Agreement is: July 1st 2024 through June 30th, 2027  

3. The maximum amount of this 
Agreement is: 

$ 480,130.00 
Four Hunderd Eighty Thousand One Hundred Thirty Dollars and Zero Cents 

4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement. 

 Exhibit A – Scope of Work – Includes page 2 (contact page) in count for Exhibit A 4   pages 

 Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 2 pages 

 Exhibit C – General Terms and Conditions 7 pages 

 Exhibit D – Additional Provisions 5 pages 

 Exhibit E – Description of Other Services 0 pages 
    

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 
 LOCAL AGENCY California Department of General 

Services Use Only 
 

 LOCAL AGENCY’S NAME  
El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

 BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 
 

 

 PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Tim Cordero, Fire Chief 

 ADDRESS 
PO Box 807 Caminio Ca 95709 

 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 AGENCY NAME 
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection  

 

 BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED(Do not type) 

 

 PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
Matthew Sully, Deputy Director, Cooperative Fire Protection 

 ADDRESS   P.O. Box 944246, Sacramento, CA 94244-2460 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 2 
EXHIBIT A 

COOPERATIVE FIRE PROGRAMS 
FIRE PROTECTION REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

The project representatives during the term of this agreement will be: 

CAL FIRE Unit Chief:  Amador El Dorado Local Agency:  EDCFPD 

Name: Mike Blankenheim Name:  Tim Cordero 

Phone:  530 644 2345 Phone:  530 644 9636 

Fax:  530 647 5276 Fax:    

All required correspondence shall be sent through U.S. Postal Service by certified mail and directed to: 

CAL FIRE Unit Chief:  Mike Blankenheim Local Agency:  EDCFPD 

Section/Unit:  Amador El Dorado Section/Unit:        

Attention:        Attention:  Tim Cordero 

Address:  2840 Mt Danaher Rd 
Camino Ca 95709 

Address:  PO Box 807 Camino Ca 
95709 

Phone:  530 644 3245 Phone:  530 644 9636 

Fax:  530 647 5276 Fax:        

Send an additional copy of all correspondence to: 

CAL FIRE  
Cooperative Fire Services 
P.O. Box 944246 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2460 

AUTHORIZATION 

As used herein, Director shall mean Director of CAL FIRE.  This agreement, its terms and conditions 
are authorized under the Public Resources Code Sections 4141, 4142, 4143 and 4144, as applicable. 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 3 
EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Under Public Resources Code Section 4114 and other provisions of law, STATE maintains fire 
prevention and fire suppression forces including the necessary equipment, personnel, and facilities 
required to prevent and extinguish forest fires.  

The purpose of this agreement is to provide mutually advantageous fire and emergency services 
through an effective consolidated organization, wherein the STATE is primarily financially responsible 
for protecting natural resources from vegetation fires and the LOCAL AGENCY is primarily financially 
responsible for protecting life and property from fires and other emergencies.  The LOCAL AGENCY 
shall have sole authority to establish the fire protection organization and structure needed to meet 
the determined level of service.  This level of service may be based on the LOCAL AGENCY 
governing board’s established fiscal parameters and assessment of risks and hazards. LOCAL 
AGENCY personnel providing services under this agreement may include any one or a combination 
of the following: regular employees, persons temporarily employed and commonly known as 
volunteers, paid-call firefighters, or others temporarily employed to perform any emergency work or 
emergency service including, but not limited to fire prevention, fire suppression and emergency 
medical response. 

To comply with the STATE’s mandate for full cost recovery of goods and services provided for others, 
the LOCAL AGENCY shall be responsible for all STATE costs, both direct and indirect, required to 
execute the terms of this agreement.  These costs shall include, but not be limited to: required training 
and associated post coverage, employee uniform and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) costs. 

1.  FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE STATE 

STATE provides a modern, full service fire protection and emergency incident management agency 
that provides comprehensive fire protection and other emergency incident response.  STATE 
designs regional fire protection solutions for urban and rural communities by efficiently utilizing all 
emergency protection resources. Regional solutions provide the most effective method of 
protecting the citizens of California at local, county and state levels. 

Fire protection services to be provided by STATE under this agreement shall include the following:  
(check boxes below that apply) 

 1) Emergency Fire Protection, Medical and Rescue Response: services include 
commercial, residential, and wildland fire protection, prevention and investigation; hazardous 
materials incident response; emergency vehicle extrication; hazardous conditions response 
(flooding, downed power lines, earthquake, terrorist incident, etc.); emergency medical and rescue 
response; and public service assistance.  Also included are management support services that 
include fire department administration, training and safety, personnel, finance and logistical 
support. 

 2) Basic Life Support Services: emergency medical technician (EMT) level emergency 
medical response providing first aid, basic life support (BLS), airway management, administration 
of oxygen, bleeding control, and life support system stabilization until patients are transported to 
the nearest emergency care facility. 

 3) Advanced Life Support Services: paramedic level emergency medical response 
providing early advanced airway management, intravenous drug therapy, and life support system 
stabilization until patients are transported to the nearest emergency care facility. 

 4) Dispatch Services:  provide fire department 9-1-1 emergency dispatch by CAL FIRE 
Fire/Emergency Command Center (ECC).  CAL FIRE will be responsible for fire/emergency 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 4 
dispatching emergency resource units covered under this agreement.  The CAL FIRE ECC is 
staffed with a Battalion Chief, three or more Fire Captains and Communications Operators to 
provide 24/7 year-round coverage. There is always an officer of Captain rank or higher to serve as 
the shift supervisor and command officer. CAL FIRE uses an integrated Computer Aided Dispatch 
(CAD) system using the latest technology, to direct the closest available resources to all emergency 
incidents. 

 5) Fire Code Inspection, Prevention and Enforcement Services: CAL FIRE has staff Fire 
Inspectors serving under the direction of the LOCAL AGENCY Fire Marshal to provide services to 
the area covered by this agreement.  Fire Code Enforcement will normally be available five days 
per week, with emergency or scheduled enforcement inspections available seven days per week.   
Fire Prevention and Investigation services will be provided by CAL FIRE Prevention Officers trained 
in arson, commercial, and wildland fire investigation.  Officers are available by appointment for site 
visits and consultations.  Officers are trained at CAL FIRE’s Peace Officer Standard Training 
(POST) certified law enforcement training academy and they cooperate effectively with all local, 
state and federal law enforcement agencies. 

 6) Land Use/ Pre-Fire Planning Services – CAL FIRE staff will provide community land use 
planning, administration of Pre-Fire project work, including community outreach, development of 
community education programs, project quality control, maintenance of project records and 
submittal of progress reports, completion of required environmental documentation, acquisition of 
required permits and completion of other associated administrative duties. 

 7) Disaster planning services (listed in Exhibit E, Description of Other Services, attached 
hereto and made a part of this agreement) 

 8) Specific service descriptions and staffing coverage, by station (listed in Exhibit E, 
Description of Other Services, attached hereto and made a part of this agreement) 

 9) Extended Fire Protection Service Availability (Amador) 

2.  ADMINISTRATION 

Under the requirements of California Public Resources Code Section 4114 and other provisions of 
law, STATE maintains fire prevention and firefighting services as outlined in Exhibit D, Schedule B of 
this agreement. 

A.  Director shall select and employ a Region Chief who shall, under the direction of the 
Director/Chief Deputy Director, manage all aspects of fire prevention and fire protection 
services and forestry-related programs. 

B.  Director will select and employ a Unit Chief who shall, under the supervision and direction of 
Director/Region Chief or a lawful representative, have charge of the organization described 
in Exhibit D, Schedules A, B and C included hereto and made a part of this agreement.   

C.  LOCAL AGENCY shall appoint the Unit Chief as the LOCAL AGENCY Fire Chief for all 
Emergency Fire Protection, Medical and Rescue Response Agreements, pursuant to 
applicable statutory authority. The Unit Chief may delegate this responsibility to qualified staff.  

D.  The Unit Chief may dispatch personnel and equipment listed in Exhibit D, Schedules A, B and 
C from the assigned station or location under guidelines established by LOCAL AGENCY and 
approved by STATE.  Personnel and/or equipment listed in Exhibit D, Schedule B may be 
dispatched at the sole discretion of STATE.  



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 5 
E.  The Unit Chief shall exercise professional judgment consistent with STATE policy and his or 

her employment by STATE in authorizing or making any assignments to emergencies and 
other responses, including assignments made in response to requests for mutual aid. 

F.  Except as may be otherwise provided for in this agreement, STATE shall not incur any 
obligation on the part of LOCAL AGENCY to pay for any labor, materials, supplies or services 
beyond the total set forth in the respective Exhibit D, Schedules A and C, as to the services 
to be rendered pursuant to each Schedule.  

G.  Nothing herein shall alter or amend or be construed to alter or amend any Collective 
Bargaining Agreement or Memorandum of Understanding between the State of California and 
its employees under the State Employer-Employee Relations Act. 

3.  SUPPRESSION COST RECOVERY 

As provided in Health and Safety Code (H&SC) Section 13009, STATE may bring an action for 
collection of suppression costs of any fire caused by negligence, violation of law, or failure to correct 
noticed fire safety violations.  When using LOCAL AGENCY equipment and personnel under the 
terms of this agreement, STATE may, at the request of LOCAL AGENCY, bring such an action for 
collection of costs incurred by LOCAL AGENCY.  In such a case LOCAL AGENCY appoints and 
designates STATE as its agent in said collection proceedings.  In the event of recovery, STATE shall 
deduct fees and litigation costs in a proportional percentage amount based on verifiable and justifiable 
suppression costs for the fire at issue.  These recovery costs are for services provided which are 
beyond the scope of those covered by the local government administrative fee. 

In all such instances, STATE shall give timely notice of the possible application of H&SC Section 
13009 to the representative designated by LOCAL AGENCY. 

4.  MUTUAL AID 

When rendering mutual aid or assistance as authorized in H&SC Sections 13050 and 13054, STATE 
may, at the request of LOCAL AGENCY, demand payment of charges and seek reimbursement of 
LOCAL AGENCY costs for personnel, equipment and operating expenses as funded herein, under 
authority given by H&SC Sections 13051 and 13054.  STATE, in seeking said reimbursement 
pursuant to such request of LOCAL AGENCY, shall represent LOCAL AGENCY by following the 
procedures set forth in H&SC Section 13052.  Any recovery of LOCAL AGENCY costs, less 
expenses, shall be paid or credited to LOCAL AGENCY, as directed by LOCAL AGENCY. 

In all such instances, STATE shall give timely notice of the possible application of H&SC Sections 
13051 and 13054 to the officer designated by LOCAL AGENCY. 

5.  PROPERTY PURCHASE AND ACCOUNTING 

LOCAL AGENCY shall be responsible for all costs associated with property required by personnel to 
carry out this agreement.  Employee uniform costs will be assessed to the LOCAL AGENCY through 
the agreement billing process.  Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) costs shall be the responsibility 
of the LOCAL AGENCY.  By mutual agreement, PPE meeting the minimum specifications established 
by the STATE may be purchased directly by the LOCAL AGENCY. Alternately, the STATE will supply 
all PPE and the LOCAL AGENCY will be billed for costs incurred. 

All property provided by LOCAL AGENCY and by STATE for the purpose of providing fire protection 
services shall be marked and accounted for by the Unit Chief in such a manner as to conform to the 
regulations, if any, established by the parties for the segregation, care, and use of the respective 
properties. 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 6 
EXHIBIT B 

BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

1. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 

A. LOCAL AGENCY shall pay STATE actual cost for fire protection services pursuant to 
this agreement an amount not to exceed that set forth in Exhibit D, Schedule A for each 
fiscal year. STATE shall prepare an Exhibit D, Schedule A each year, which shall be 
the basis for payment for the entire fiscal year for which services are provided. 

B. Any other funds designated by LOCAL AGENCY to be expended under the supervision 
of or for use by a Unit Chief for fire protection services shall be set forth in Exhibit D, 
Schedule C. This clause shall not limit the right of LOCAL AGENCY to make additional 
expenditures, whether under Exhibit D, Schedule C or otherwise. 

C. STATE shall invoice LOCAL AGENCY for the cost of fire protection services on a 
quarterly basis as follows: 

1) For actual services rendered by STATE during the period of July 1 through 
September 30, by an invoice filed with LOCAL AGENCY on or after December 10. 

2) For actual services rendered by STATE during the period October 1 through 
December 31, by an invoice filed with LOCAL AGENCY on or after December 31. 

3) For actual services rendered by STATE during the period January 1 through March 
31, by an invoice filed with LOCAL AGENCY on or after March 31. 

4) For the estimated cost of services during the period April 1 through June 30, by an 
invoice filed in advance with LOCAL AGENCY on or  after March 1. 

5) A final statement shall be filed with LOCAL AGENCY by October 1 following the 
close of the fiscal year, reconciling the payments made by LOCAL AGENCY with 
the cost of the actual services rendered by STATE and including any other costs 
as provided herein, giving credit for all payments made by LOCAL AGENCY and 
claiming the balance due to STATE, if any, or refunding to LOCAL AGENCY the 
amount of any overpayment. 

6) All payments by LOCAL AGENCY shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of invoice from STATE, or within thirty (30) days after the filing dates specified 
above, whichever is later. 

7) The STATE reserves the right to adjust the frequency of billing and payment to a 
monthly cycle with a thirty (30) day written notice to the LOCAL AGENCY when: 

a. The Director predicts a cash flow shortage, or 

b. When determined by the Region Chief, after consulting with the Unit Chief and 
the LOCAL AGENCY Contract Administrator, that the LOCAL AGENCY may 
not have the financial ability to support the contract at the contract level. 

D. Invoices shall include actual or estimated costs as provided herein of salaries and 
employee benefits for those personnel employed, charges for operating expenses and 
equipment and the administrative charge in accordance with Exhibit D, Schedule A.  
When "contractual rates" are indicated, the rate shall be based on an average salary 
plus all benefits.  "Contractual rates" means an all-inclusive rate established in Exhibit 
D, Schedule A for total costs to STATE, per specified position, for 24-hour fire protection 
services during the period covered. 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 7 
E. STATE shall credit the LOCAL AGENCY, or cover behind at no cost, for the costs of 

Non-post (e.g. Fire Marshal, Training Officer, etc.) positions and equipment assigned to 
STATE responsibility fires or other STATE funded emergency incidents.  The STATE 
shall notify the LOCAL AGENCY when this occurs. 

2.  COST OF OPERATING AND MAINTAINING EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTY 

The cost of maintaining, operating, and replacing any and all property and equipment, real or 
personal, furnished by the parties hereto for fire protection purposes, shall be borne by the party 
owning or furnishing such property or equipment unless otherwise provided for herein or by separate 
written agreement.  
 
3.       BUDGET CONTINGENCY CLAUSE 
 

A. If the LOCAL AGENCY’s governing authority does not appropriate sufficient funds for the 
current year or any subsequent years covered under this Agreement, which results in an 
inability to pay the STATE for the services specified in this Agreement, the LOCAL AGENCY 
shall promptly notify the STATE and this Agreement will terminate pursuant to the notice 
periods required herein.   

B. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the LOCAL AGENCY for purposes of 
this program, the LOCAL AGENCY shall promptly notify the STATE, and the STATE shall 
have the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability occurring to the STATE, or 
offer an agreement amendment to LOCAL AGENCY to reflect the reduced amount, 
pursuant to the notice terms herein. 

C. If the STATE Budget Act does not appropriate sufficient funds to provide the services for 
the current year or any subsequent years covered under this Agreement, which results in 
an inability to provide the services specified in this Agreement to the LOCAL AGENCY, the 
STATE shall promptly notify the LOCAL AGENCY, and this Agreement will terminate 
pursuant to the notice periods required herein.       

D. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the STATE Budget Act for purposes 
of this program, the STATE shall promptly notify the LOCAL AGENCY, and the LOCAL 
AGENCY shall have the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability occurring to 
the LOCAL AGENCY, or offer an agreement amendment to LOCAL AGENCY to reflect the 
reduced services, pursuant to the notice terms herein.  

E. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions in paragraphs A and B above, the LOCAL 
AGENCY shall remain responsible for payment for all services actually rendered by the 
STATE under this Agreement regardless of LOCAL AGENCY funding being reduced, 
deleted or not otherwise appropriated for this program.  The LOCAL AGENCY shall 
promptly notify the STATE in writing of any budgetary changes that would impact this 
Agreement.   

F. LOCAL AGENCY and STATE agree that this Budget Contingency Clause shall not relieve 
or excuse either party from its obligation(s) to provide timely notice as may be required 
elsewhere in this Agreement.      



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 8 
EXHIBIT C 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. APPROVAL: This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved 
by the Department of General Services, if required. STATE will not commence performance 
until such approval has been obtained. 

2. AMENDMENT: This agreement may be amended by mutual consent of LOCAL AGENCY and 
STATE.  No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made 
in writing, signed by the parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or Agreement 
not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

If during the term of this agreement LOCAL AGENCY shall desire a reduction in STATE civil 
service employees assigned to the organization provided for in Exhibit D, Schedule A, LOCAL 
AGENCY shall provide 120 days written notice of the requested reduction.  Notification shall 
include the following:  (1) The total amount of reduction; (2) The firm effective date of the 
reduction; and (3) The number of employees, by classification, affected by a reduction.  If such 
notice is not provided, LOCAL AGENCY shall reimburse STATE for relocation costs incurred 
by STATE as a result of the reduction.  Personnel reductions resulting solely from an increase 
in STATE employee salaries or STATE expenses occurring after signing this agreement and 
set forth in Exhibit D, Schedule A to this agreement shall not be subject to relocation expense 
reimbursement by LOCAL AGENCY. 

If during the term of this agreement costs to LOCAL AGENCY set forth in any Exhibit D, Schedule 
A to this agreement increase and LOCAL AGENCY, in its sole discretion, determines it cannot 
meet such increase without reducing services provided by STATE, LOCAL AGENCY shall within  
one hundred twenty (120) days of receipt of such Schedule notify STATE and designate which 
adjustments shall be made to bring costs to the necessary level.  If such designation is not 
received by STATE within the period specified, STATE shall reduce services in its sole discretion 
to permit continued operation within available funds. 

3. ASSIGNMENT:  This Agreement is not assignable by the LOCAL AGENCY either in whole or in 
part, without the consent of the STATE in the form of a formal written amendment. 

4. EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT:  

A. One year prior to the date of expiration of this agreement, LOCAL AGENCY shall give 
STATE written notice of whether LOCAL AGENCY will extend or enter into a new agreement 
with STATE for fire protection services and, if so, whether LOCAL AGENCY intends to 
change the level of fire protection services from that provided by this agreement.  If this 
agreement is executed with less than one year remaining on the term of the agreement, 
LOCAL AGENCY shall provide this written notice at the time it signs the agreement and the 
one year notice requirement shall not apply. 

B. If LOCAL AGENCY fails to provide the notice, as defined above in (A), STATE shall have 
the option to extend this agreement for a period of up to one year from the original termination 
date and to continue providing services at the same or reduced level as STATE determines 
would be appropriate during the extended period of this agreement.  Six months prior to the 
date of expiration of this agreement, or any extension hereof, STATE shall give written notice 
to LOCAL AGENCY of any extension of this agreement and any change in the level of fire 
protection services STATE will provide during the extended period of this agreement.  
Services provided and obligations incurred by STATE during an extended period shall be 
accepted by LOCAL AGENCY as services and obligations under the terms of this 
agreement. 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 9 
C. The cost of services provided by STATE during the extended period shall be based upon 

the amounts that would have been charged LOCAL AGENCY during the fiscal year in which 
the extended period falls had the agreement been extended pursuant hereto.  Payment by 
LOCAL AGENCY for services rendered by STATE during the extended period shall be as 
provided in Exhibit B, Section 1, B of this agreement. 

5. AUDIT: STATE, including the Department of General Services and the Bureau of State Audits, 
and LOCAL AGENCY agree that their designated representative shall have the right to review 
and to copy any records and supporting documentation of the other party hereto, pertaining to 
the performance of this agreement.  STATE and LOCAL AGENCY agree to maintain such 
records for possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer 
period of records retention is stipulated, and to allow the auditor(s) of the other party access to 
such records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might 
reasonably have information related to such records.  STATE and LOCAL AGENCY agree to a 
similar right to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of 
this Agreement.  (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 
1896). 

6. INDEMNIFICATION: Each party, to the extent permitted by law, agrees to indemnify, defend and 
save harmless the other party, its officers, agents and employees from (1) any and all claims for 
economic losses accruing or resulting to any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, 
laborers and any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work services, 
materials or supplies to that party and (2) from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting 
to any person, firm or corporation who may be injured or damaged by that party, in the 
performance of any activities of that party under this agreement, except where such injury or 
damage arose from the sole negligence or willful misconduct attributable to the other party or 
from acts not within the scope of duties to be performed pursuant to this agreement; and (3) each 
party shall be responsible for any and all claims that may arise from the behavior and/or 
performance of its respective employees during and in the course of their employment to this 
cooperative agreement. 

7. DISPUTES: LOCAL AGENCY shall select and appoint a "Contract Administrator" who shall, 
under the supervision and direction of LOCAL AGENCY, be available for contract resolution or 
policy intervention with the STATE’s Region Chief when, upon determination by the designated 
STATE representative, the Unit Chief acting as LOCAL AGENCY’s Fire Chief under this 
agreement faces a situation in which a decision to serve the interest of LOCAL AGENCY has 
the potential to conflict with STATE interest or policy. Any dispute concerning a question of fact 
arising under the terms of this agreement which is not disposed of within a reasonable period 
of time by the LOCAL AGENCY and STATE employees normally responsible for the 
administration of this agreement shall be brought to the attention of the CAL FIRE Director or 
designee and the Chief Executive Officer (or designated representative) of the LOCAL 
AGENCY for joint resolution.  For purposes of this provision, a “reasonable period of time” shall 
be ten (10) calendar days or less.  STATE and LOCAL AGENCY agree to continue with the 
responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 

8. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE/CANCELLATION:  

A. If LOCAL AGENCY fails to remit payments in accordance with any part of this agreement, 
STATE may terminate this agreement and all related services upon 60 days written notice to 
LOCAL AGENCY.  Termination of this agreement does not relieve LOCAL AGENCY from 
providing STATE full compensation in accordance with terms of this agreement for services 
actually rendered by STATE pursuant to this agreement.   



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 10 
B. This agreement may be cancelled at the option of either STATE or LOCAL AGENCY at any 

time during its term, with or without cause, on giving one year’s written notice to the other 
party. Either LOCAL AGENCY or STATE electing to cancel this agreement shall give one 
year’s written notice to the other party prior to cancellation. 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  Unless otherwise provided in this agreement LOCAL 
AGENCY and the agents and employees of LOCAL AGENCY, in the performance of this 
Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of 
the STATE. 

10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:  During the performance of this agreement, LOCAL 
AGENCY shall be an equal opportunity employer and shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, 
or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, 
color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS) 
mental disability, medical condition (e.g.cancer), age (over 40), marital status, denial of family 
care leave, veteran status, sexual orientation, and sexual identity. LOCAL AGENCY shall insure 
that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free 
from such discrimination and harassment. LOCAL AGENCY shall comply with the provisions 
of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et 
seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission 
implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 
2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and 
made a part hereof as if set forth in full. LOCAL AGENCY shall give written notice of their 
obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining 
or other Agreement. 

In addition, LOCAL AGENCY acknowledges that it has obligations relating to ethics, Equal 
Employment Opportunity (EEO), the Fire Fighter’s Bill of Rights Act (FFBOR), and the Peace 
Officer’s Bill of Rights Act (POBOR).  LOCAL AGENCY shall ensure that its employees comply 
with all the legal obligations relating to these areas.  LOCAL AGENCY shall ensure that its 
employees are provided appropriate training. 

11. TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in the performance of this agreement. 

12. COMPENSATION: The consideration to be paid STATE, as provided herein, shall be in 
compensation for all of STATE’s expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, 
per Diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided. 

13. GOVERNING LAW: This agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California. 

14. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT: “For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the LOCAL 
AGENCY acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, that: 

A. The LOCAL AGENCY recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and 
shall fully comply with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and family support 
enforcement, including, but not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with 
earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of 
Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and 

B. The LOCAL AGENCY, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings 
assignment orders of all employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the 
New Hire Registry maintained by the California Employment Development Department.” 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 11 
15. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION: In the event that any provision of this Agreement is 

unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree that all other provisions of 
this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby. 

16. COMPLIANCE WITH THE HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
ACT (HIPAA) 

The STATE and LOCAL AGENCY have a responsibility to comply with the provisions of the 1996 
Federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and the 2001 State Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Implementation Act.  HIPAA provisions become 
applicable once the association and relationships of the health care providers are determined by 
the LOCAL AGENCY.  It is the LOCAL AGENCY’S responsibility to determine their status as a 
“covered entity” and the relationships of personnel as “health care providers”, “health care 
clearinghouse”, “hybrid entities”, business associates”, or “trading partners”.  STATE personnel 
assigned to fill the LOCAL AGENCY’S positions within this Agreement, and their supervisors, 
may fall under the requirements of HIPAA based on the LOCAL AGENCY’S status.  It is the 
LOCAL AGENCY’S responsibility to identify, notify, train, and provide all necessary policy and 
procedures to the STATE personnel that fall under HIPAA requirements so that they can comply 
with the required security and privacy standards of the act. 

17. LIABILITY INSURANCE 

The STATE and LOCAL AGENCY shall each provide proof of insurance in a form acceptable 
to the other party at no cost one to the other, to cover all services provided and use of local 
government facilities covered by this agreement.  If LOCAL AGENCY is insured and/or 
self-insured in whole or in part for any losses, LOCAL AGENCY shall provide a completed 
Certification of Self Insurance (Exhibit D, Schedule E) or certificate of insurance, executed by 
a duly authorized officer of LOCAL AGENCY.  Upon request of LOCAL AGENCY the STATE 
shall provide a letter from DGS, Office Risk and Insurance Management executed by a duly 
authorized officer of STATE.  If commercially insured in whole or in part, a certificate of such 
coverage executed by the insurer or its authorized representative shall be provided.  

Said commercial insurance or self-insurance coverage of the LOCAL AGENCY shall include 
the following: 

A. Fire protection and emergency services - Any commercial insurance shall provide at least 
general liability for $5,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence. 

B. Dispatch services – Any commercial insurance shall provide at least general liability for 
$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence. 

C. The CAL FIRE, State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants are included 
as additional insured’s for purposes of this contract. 

D. The STATE shall receive thirty (30) days prior written notice of any cancellation or change 
to the policy at the addresses listed on page 2 of this agreement. 

18. WORKERS COMPENSATION: (only applies where local government employees/volunteers are 
supervised by CAL FIRE, as listed in Exhibit D Schedule C.   STATE contract employees’ workers 
compensation is included as part of the contract personnel benefit rate). 

A. Workers' Compensation and related benefits for those persons, whose use or employment 
is contemplated herein, shall be provided in the manner prescribed by California Labor 
Codes, State Interagency Agreements and other related laws, rules, insurance policies, 
collective bargaining agreements, and memorandums of understanding. 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 12 
B. The STATE Unit Chief administering the organization provided for in this agreement shall 

not use, dispatch or direct any non STATE employees, on any work which is deemed to 
be the responsibility of LOCAL AGENCY, unless and until LOCAL AGENCY provides for 
Workers' Compensation benefits at no cost to STATE.  In the event STATE is held liable, 
in whole or in part, for the payment of any Worker's Compensation claim or award arising 
from the injury or death of any such worker, LOCAL AGENCY agrees to compensate 
STATE for the full amount of such liability.   

C. The STATE /LOCAL AGENCY shall receive proof of Worker’s Compensation coverage 
and shall be notified of any cancellation and change of coverage at the addresses listed in 
Section 1. 

19. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: LOCAL AGENCY needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If LOCAL AGENCY has any questions on the status 
of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the STATE must be contacted 
immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Public Contract Code §10410):  

1) No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from which the 
officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored 
or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or enterprise is required as a 
condition of regular state employment.  

2) No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent contractor 
with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Public Contract Code §10411): 

1) For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state officer 
or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, 
transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making process relevant to 
the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2) For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was employed 
by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject area as the 
proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state service. 

If LOCAL AGENCY violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by LOCAL 
AGENCY shall render this Agreement void. (Public Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Public Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

20. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: LOCAL AGENCY needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's Compensation 
or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and LOCAL AGENCY affirms 
to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this 
Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

21. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: LOCAL AGENCY assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 13 
of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 
U.S.C. 12101 et seq.)  

22. LOCAL AGENCY NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the LOCAL 
AGENCY’S name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of the name 
change the STATE will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented with a new 
name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

23. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the STATE with a 
copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which by law has 
authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement.  

24. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the LOCAL AGENCY shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the State 
Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not 
subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste 
discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of 
provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 

25. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION. STATE certifies its compliance with applicable federal and State 
hiring requirements for persons with disabilities, and is deemed by LOCAL AGENCY to be in 
compliance with the provisions of LOCAL AGENCY’S Affirmative Action Program for Vendors. 

26. DRUG AND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE. As a material condition of this Agreement, 
STATE agrees that it and its employees, while performing service for LOCAL AGENCY, on 
LOCAL AGENCY property, or while using LOCAL AGENCY equipment, shall comply with 
STATE’s Employee Rules of Conduct as they relate to the possession, use, or consumption of 
drugs and alcohol. 

27. ZERO TOLERANCE FOR FRAUDULENT CONDUCT IN LOCAL AGENCY SERVICES.  
STATE shall comply with any applicable “Zero Tolerance for Fraudulent Conduct in LOCAL 
AGENCY Services.”  There shall be “Zero Tolerance” for fraud committed by contractors in the 
administration of LOCAL AGENCY programs and the provision of LOCAL AGENCY services.  
Upon proven instances of fraud committed by the STATE in connection with performance under 
the Agreement, the Agreement may be terminated consistent with the termination for 
cause/cancellation term, Exhibit C, section 8, subsection B, of Cooperative Fire Programs Fire 
Protection Reimbursement Agreement, LG-1, between the California Department of Forestry 
and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) and the LOCAL AGENCY. 

28. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  “Confidential information” means information designated by 
CAL FIRE and/or the LOCAL AGENCY disclosure of which is restricted, prohibited or privileged 
by State and federal law. Confidential Information includes, but is not limited to, information 
exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records Act (Government Code Sections 
6250 et seq.) Confidential Information includes but is not limited to all records as defined in 
Government Code section 6252 as well as verbal communication of Confidential Information. 
Any exchange of Confidential Information between parties shall not constitute a “waiver” of any 
exemption pursuant to Government Code section 6254.5 

CAL FIRE and LOCAL AGENCY personnel allowed access to information designated as 
Confidential Information shall be limited to those persons with a demonstrable business need 
for such access. CAL FIRE and LOCAL AGENCY agree to provide a list of authorized personnel 
in writing as required by Government Code section 6254.5(e). CAL FIRE and the LOCAL 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 14 
AGENCY agree to take all necessary measures to protect Confidential Information and shall 
impose all the requirements of this Agreement on all of their respective officers, employees and 
agents with regards to access to the Confidential Information. A Party to this Contract who 
experiences a security breach involving Confidential Information covered by this Contract, 
agrees to promptly notify the other Party of such breach 

29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This agreement contains the whole agreement between the Parties.  It 
cancels and supersedes any previous agreement for the same or similar services. 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 15 
EXHIBIT D 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

EXCISE TAX: State of California is exempt from federal excise taxes, and no payment will be made 
for any taxes levied on employees' wages.  STATE will pay any applicable State of California or 
local sales or use taxes on the services rendered or equipment or parts supplied pursuant to this 
agreement.  The STATE may pay any applicable sales and use tax imposed by another state. 

Schedules 

The following Schedules are included as part of this agreement (check boxes if they apply): 

 A. Fiscal Display, PRC 4142 AND/OR PRC 4144 - STATE provided LOCAL 
AGENCY funded fire protection services.  STATE-owned vehicles shall be operated 
and maintained in accordance with policies of STATE at rates listed in Exhibit D, 
Schedule A. 

 B. STATE Funded Resource - A listing of personnel, crews and major facilities of the 
STATE overlapping or adjacent to the local agency area that may form a reciprocal 
part of this agreement. 

 C. LOCAL AGENCY Provided Local Funded Resources - A listing of services, 
personnel, equipment and expenses, which are paid directly by the local agency, 
but which are under the supervision of the Unit Chief. 

 D. LOCAL AGENCY Owned STATE Maintained Vehicles - Vehicle information 
pertaining to maintenance responsibilities and procedures for local agency-owned 
vehicles that may be a part of the agreement. 

LOCAL AGENCY-owned firefighting vehicles shall meet and be maintained to meet minimum 
safety standards set forth in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations; and Titles 8 and 13, 
California Code of Regulations.  

LOCAL AGENCY-owned vehicles that are furnished to the STATE shall be maintained and 
operated in accordance to LOCAL AGENCY policies.  In the event LOCAL AGENCY does 
not have such policies, LOCAL AGENCY-owned vehicles shall be maintained and operated 
in accordance with STATE policies. The cost of said vehicle maintenance and operation shall 
be at actual cost or at rates listed in Exhibit D, Schedule D. 

Exhibit D, Schedule D is incorporated into this section if LOCAL AGENCY-owned vehicles 
listed in Exhibit D, Schedule D are to be operated, maintained, and repaired by STATE. 

LOCAL AGENCY assumes full responsibility for all liabilities associated therewith in 
accordance with California Vehicle Code Sections 17000, 17001 et seq.  STATE employees 
operating LOCAL AGENCY-owned vehicles shall be deemed employees of LOCAL 
AGENCY, as defined in Vehicle Code Section 17000.  Except where LOCAL AGENCY would 
have no duty to indemnify STATE under Exhibit C, Section 6 for all LOCAL AGENCY-owned 
vehicles operated or used by employees of STATE under this agreement. 



Contractor Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District 
Contract No.: 2CA06879 

                                    Page No.: 16 
LOCAL AGENCY employees, who are under the supervision of the Unit Chief and operating 
STATE-owned motor vehicles, as a part of the duties and in connection with fire protection 
and other emergency services, shall be deemed employees of STATE, as defined in Vehicle 
Code Section 17000 for acts or omissions in the use of such vehicles.  Except where STATE 
would have no duty to indemnify LOCAL AGENCY under Exhibit C, Section 6. 

 E. Certification of Insurance - Provider Insurance Certification and/or proof of self-
insurance. 

  

  

  

 



Unit: AEU

Agreement Total $480,130 2CA06879

27790 PS Total $142,724 27790 PS Total $149,861 27790 PS Total $157,354
27790 OE Total $9,577 27790 OE Total $10,056 27790 OE Total $10,559

TOTAL $152,301 TOTAL $159,916 TOTAL $167,912

Fiscal Year 24/25

Contract Name:
El Dorado County Fire Protection District

Contract No.:

Page No.: 17                                 

Fiscal Year 25/26 (+5%) Fiscal Year 26/27 (+5%)



Fiscal Year: 2024 Sub Total $126,585
Index: 2700 Unit: AEU Admin $16,140

PCA 27790 Total $142,724 2CA06879
PRC: 4144

Comments Overtime Total: $15,218

Staff Benefit Rate as of 7/1/24 for POF Classifications 76.23%
Staff Benefit Rate as of 7/1/24 for SAF Classifications 64.53%
Staff Benefit Rate as of 7/1/24 for MIS Classifications 77.12%

Number of 
Positions

Classification/ad-ons (Pick From List) RET. Period
Salary 

Months
 Salary 
Rate 

Total Salary EDWC Rate EDWC Periods Total EDWC
 Salary 

Benefits 
 FFI UI 

 EDWC 
Benefits 

Total Salary & 
EDWC

Total Position 
Cost

3 Firefighter I POF 3 $4,643 $41,787 $2,722 3 $24,498 $31,854 $3,598 $9,630 $111,367 $126,585
POF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POF $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Overtime POF $15,000 $0 $218 $0 $15,218

$0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Overtime $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Overtime $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Overtime $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Overtime $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Overtime $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Overtime $0 $0 $0 $0

This is a Schedule A - 4142 of the Cooperative Agreement, dated July 1, 2024 between El Dorado County Fire 
Protection District and The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE)

Contract Name: El Dorado County Fire Protection District

Contract No.:

Page No.: 18                                              

CAL FIRE Unit Chief

CAL FIRE Region Chief

Mike Blankenheim
George Morris III



Fiscal Year: 2024 $39

Index: 2700 $8,494

PCA: 27790 $1,083

PRC: 4144 $9,577 19
Comments

1.45%

Category (Pick from List) Details Number Months Rate Sub-Total Uniform Benefits Total 

-$                     0 -$              
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR BU8 5.00 3.00 $178 2,663$                39$                          2,701$         

VEHICLE OPERATIONS Engine Use 1.00 3.00 $1431 4,293$                0 4,293$         
FACILITIES OPERATIONS 1.00 3.00 $500 1,500$                0 1,500$         

-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     0 -$              
-$                     -$                         -$              
-$                     -$                         -$              
-$                     -$                         -$              
-$                     -$                         -$              

2CA06879
Total Page No.:

This is a Schedule A - 4142 of the Cooperative Agreement, dated July 1, 2024 between El Dorado County Fire 
Protection District and The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE)

Uniform Benefits Contract Name:

Sub Total

Admin Contract No.:

El Dorado County Fire Protection District



 
 

To:    Board of Directors 
From:  Tim Cordero, Fire Chief 
Date:   September 12, 2024 
Subject:  American Fidelity – Additional Benefits 
 
   
The district currently contracts with American Fidelity for optional additional 
employee funded benefits. The currently offered benefits include Life, Accident, 
hospital Indemnity, Gap, and Cancer Insurance. We are looking to add two 
additional benefits for the employees to choose from. The first one is a Flexible 
Spending Account, (FSA). The benefit of this account is lowering taxable income 
and providing a debit card for eligible expenses. Eligible expenses include 
medical bills, copays, over-the-counter medications, orthodontia/dental and 
vision costs.  
 
This program would be funded by the employees personally per pay period or a 
lump sum, per the employee’s choice. The program offers a maximum amount 
per year of $3200.00. This amount would be become available to the employee 
at the beginning of the contact agreement.  
 
The second benefit would be Short-Term Disability. This would be ideal for 
employees who have low sick balances and would cover a portion of their salary 
until The District covered Long Term Disability coverage goes into effect.  
 
All financial obligations are between American Fidelity and the employee. There 
is no financial responsibility from the district. If an employee is to cease 
employment, American Fidelity takes any responsibility with the employee 
separate from the district.  
 
Staff would recommend the Board approve these additional benefits for 
employees in our yearly renewal contract.  
 
 



 
 
 

El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

August 2024 

Run Statistics – Engines & Medics 

 

Engine Companies:    Medic Units:  
Engine 17: 114    Medic 17: 180 
Engine 19: 70    Medic 19: 182 
Engine 25: 252    Medic 25: 268 
Engine 28: 148    Medic 28: 240 
Engine 72: 55                                Medic 49: 261  

 Total Responses: 639                     Total Responses: 1,131 
 

 



 
 
 

El Dorado County Fire 
Protection District 

 
Monthly Run Statistics and Yearly Comparison 

August 2024 
Engine Companies and Medic Units 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Engine 17 Engine 19 Engine 25 Engine 28 Engine 72 Total Calls

Engine Company Monthly Totals

January February March April May June July August

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Engine 17 Engine 19 Engine 25 Engine 28 Engine 72 Total Calls

2023 vs. 2024 Call Volume

24-Aug 23-Aug



 
 
 

El Dorado County Fire                             
Protection District 

 
Monthly Run Statistics and Yearly Comparison 

August 2024 
Engine Companies and Medic Units 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Medic 17 Medic 19 Medic 25 Medic 28 Medic 49 Total Calls

Medic Unit Monthly Totals

January February March April May June July August

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Medic 17 Medic 19 Medic 25 Medic 28 Medic 49 Total Calls

2023 vs. 2024 Call Volume

24-Aug 23-Aug



 
 
 

El Dorado County Fire                             
Protection District 

 
Monthly Run Statistics and Yearly Comparison 

August 2024 
Engine Companies and Medic Units 

 

 

 

 



El Dorado County Fire 

Protection District 
 

       Station 25 Run Statistics 
                August 2024 

 
ENGINE 25: 252 Total Calls    MEDIC 25: 268 Total Calls 
             Medical Aid- 171                    Medical Aid- 212 
              Fire- 16           Fire- 8 

  Traffic Collision- 17                                      Traffic Collision- 13 
  Public Assist - 24                                         Transfer -12 

              Misc. – 23                                                      Misc.- 4 
              Move/Cover– 1                                           Move/Cover - 19 

 

 

 



 
El Dorado County Fire 

Protection District 
 
 
Monthly Run Statistics and Call Break Down 

August 2024 
            Engine Companies and Medic Units 

 
Total Responses for Engine Companies: 639 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Engine 17 Engine 19 Engine 25 Engine 28 Engine 72 Total Calls

Engine Company Monthly Totals

January February March April May June July August

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Medical Aid Fire Traffic Collision Public Assist Misc. Move/Cover

Monthly Call Type Comparision Engine Companies

January February March April May June July August



El Dorado County Fire 
Protection District 

 

 

 

 

Total Responses for Medic Units: 1,131 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Medic 17 Medic 19 Medic 25 Medic 28 Medic 49 Total Calls

Medic Unit Monthly Totals

January February March April May June July August

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000

Medical Aid Fire Traffic Collision Transfer Misc Move / Cover

Monthly Call Type Comparision Medic Units

January February March April May June July August



           
               Engine 25 Call Volume and Locations 
    August 2024 
 

  

 

 

 

 



 

Medic 25 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Medical Aid Traffic Collision Fire Misc. Transfer Move/Cover

Jan-24

Feb-24

Mar-24

Apr-24

May-24

Jun-24

Jul-24

Medical Aid
79%

Traffic Collision
5%

Transfer
4%

Move Up
7%

Fire
3%

Miscellaneous
2%M25



  El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

Station 17 Run Review August 2024 

 

 

ENGINE 17:  114 Total Calls 
Medical Aid- 71 
Fire- 6 
Traffic Collision- 14 
Public Assist- 13 
Misc- 9 
Move/Cover - 1 

 

MEDIC 17:   180 Total Calls 
Medical Aid- 98 
Fire- 3 
Traffic Collision- 13 
Transfer- 0 
Misc- 0 
Move/Cover - 66 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



E17 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

 

Medical Aid
62%

Traffic Collisions
12%

Fire
5%

Public Assists
12%

Miscellaneous
8%

Move/Cover
1%

E17

Medical Aid

Traffic Collisions

Fire

Public Assists

Miscellaneous

Move/Cover

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Medical Aid Trafic
Collision

Fire Public Assist Misc. Move/Cover

24-Feb

24-Mar

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug



 

M17 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

Medical Aid
54%

Traffic Collision
7%

Fire
2%

Transfer
0%

Miscellaneous
0%

Move Up
37%

M17

Medical Aid

Traffic Collision

Fire

Transfer

Miscellaneous

Move Up

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Medical Aid Traffic
Collision

Fire Misc. Transfer Move/Cover

24-Feb

24-Mar

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug



El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

Station 19 Run Review August 2024 

 

 

ENGINE 19:  70 Total Calls 
Medical Aid-  34 
Fire-  8 
Traffic Collision-  10 
Public Assist-  2 
Misc-  5 
Move/Cover - 10 

 

 

MEDIC 19:  182 Total Calls 
Medical Aid-  94 
Fire-  2 
Traffic Collision-  11 
Transfer-  2 
Misc- 0 
Move/Cover - 84 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

E19 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

 

Medical Aid
49%

Traffic Collisions
15%

Fire
12%

Public Assists
3%

Miscellaneous
7%

Move/Cover
14%

0%
Response Breakdown August 2024

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Medical Aid Traffic
Collision

Fire Public Assist Misc. Move/Cover

24-Jan

24-Feb

24-Mar

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug

24-Sep

24-Oct

24-Nov

24-Dec



 

M19 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

 

Medical Aid
49%

Traffic Collision
6%

Transfer
1%

Move Up
43%

Fire
1%

Miscellaneous
0%

0%
Response Breakdown August 2024

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Medical Aid Traffic Collision Fire Misc. Transfer Move/Cover

24-Jan

24-Feb

24-Mar

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug

24-Sep

24-Oct

24-Nov

24-Dec



   
 

El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

Station 25 Run Review August 2024 

 

ENGINE 25:  252 Total Calls 
Medical Aid-  171 
Fire-  16 
Traffic Collision-  17 
Public Assist-  24 
Misc-  23 
Move/Cover - 1 

 

 

MEDIC 25:  268 Total Calls 
Medical Aid-  212 
Fire-  8 
Traffic Collision- 13 
Transfer- 12 
Misc- 4 
Move/Cover – 19 
 

 

 

  

 

 



 

 

E25 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Medical Aid Traffic Collision Fire Public Assist Misc. Move/Cover

Jan-24

Feb-24

Mar-24

Apr-24

May-24

Jun-24

Jul-24

24-Aug

Medical Aid
68%

Traffic Collisions
7%

Fire
6%

Public Assists
10%

Miscellaneous
9%

Move/Cover
0%

E25



 

 

M25 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

Medical Aid
79%

Traffic Collision
5%

Transfer
4%

Move Up
7%

Fire
3%

Miscellaneous
2% M25

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Medical Aid Traffic Collision Fire Misc. Transfer Move/Cover

Jan-24

Feb-24

Mar-24

Apr-24

May-24

Jun-24

Jul-24

24-Aug



El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

Station 28 Run Review August 2024 

 

 

ENGINE 28:  148 Total Calls 
Medical Aid - 89  
Fire - 11 
Traffic Collision - 17 
Public Assist - 7 
Misc - 7 
Move/Cover – 17 

 

 

MEDIC 28:   240 Total Calls 
Medical Aid- 191 
Fire- 0 
Traffic Collision- 17 
Transfer- 2 
Misc- 4 
Move/Cover – 26 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

E28 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

Medical Aid
72%

Traffic Collisions
8%

Fire
5%

Public Assists
4%

Miscellaneous
3%

Move/Cover
8%

E28

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Medical Aid Traffic Collision Fire Public Assist Misc. Move/Cover

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug



M28 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

Medical Aid
79%

Traffic Collision
7%

Transfer
1%

Move Up
11%

Fire
0%

Miscellaneous
2% M28

0

50

100

150

200

250

Medical Aid Traffic
Collision

Fire Misc. Transfer Move/Cover

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug



 



El Dorado County Fire Protection District 

Station 72 and Medic 49 Run Review August 2024 

 

 

ENGINE 72:  Total Calls 55 

Medical Aid – 36 

Fire –5 

Traffic Collision – 4 

Public Assist – 4 

Misc – 4 

Move/Cover – 2 

 

MEDIC 49:  Total Calls 261 

Medical Aid – 199 

Fire – 8 

Traffic Collision – 14 

Transfer – 3 

Misc – 3 

Move/Cover – 34 



 

 

E72 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

 

 

 

Medical Aid
66%

Fire
9%

Traffic Collision
7%

Public Assist
7%

Misc
7%

Move/Cover
4%

E72

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Medical Aid Traffic
Collision

Fire Public Assist Misc. Move/Cover

24-Mar

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug



 

M49 Monthly Statistics Comparison 

 

Medical Aid
76%

Fire
3%

Traffic Collision
6%

Transfer
1%

Misc
1%

Move/Cover
13%

M49

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Medical Aid Traffic
Collision

Fire Misc. Transfer Move/Cover

24-Mar

24-Apr

24-May

24-Jun

24-Jul

24-Aug


	9-19-2024 Agenda
	8-15-2024 Minutes 
	Financial Report
	August 2024 YTD
	Claims
	SOP 2-32 Strike Team Overhead Staffing Levels Red line version (002)
	EDCFPD - September 19 2024 CFD Formation Resolution
	2024-06 ADOPTION OF FINAL BUDGET FY 24-25
	Final Budget
	Staff Report - Golden State Fire Apparatus Payment with docs
	Staff Report - Golden State Fire Apparatus Payment.pdf
	EDC 38760 Pumper Final Invoice - 19 Aug 24.pdf

	Staff Report - Cal Fire Cooperative Agreement with docs
	Staff Report - Cal Fire Cooperative Agreement.pdf
	El Dorado County FPD LG1 Draft.pdf
	El Dorado pg1.pdf
	El Dorado pg17.pdf
	El Dorado pg18.pdf
	El Dorado pg19.pdf


	Staff Report - American Fidelity FSA and STD
	August 2024 ECF Totals with City Report
	August 2024 ECF Totals.pdf
	August 2024 City of Placerville.pdf
	August 2024 Station 17.pdf
	August 2024 Station 19.pdf
	August 2024 Station 25.pdf
	August 2024 Station 28.pdf
	August 2024 Station 72 Medic 49.pdf




